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Organic Chemical Technologies



Ranking as one of Japan’s leading chemical companies,
Showa Denko K.K. operates in the five major sectors of
petrochemicals, chemicals, electronics, inorganic materi-
als, and aluminum.

Showa Denko and its Group companies have been carrying
out a six-year consolidated business plan that extends
from 2000 through 2005. Under the first three-year portion
of the plan, the “Cheetah Project,” we improved our finan-
cial strength by reducing interest-bearing debt and strength-
ened our earning power by curtailing or withdrawing from
unprofitable operations.

Under the ongoing “Sprout Project,” covering the 2003-2005
period, we give top priority to expansion in strategically
selected market areas with high growth potential. Through
nurturing the interconnections of inorganic/aluminum and
organic chemical technologies, we will provide even more
individualized, high-value products for the growing markets of
electronics, automotive parts, and personal care/environmen-
tal goods. By doing so, we are fulfilling our aim of becoming
a truly “focused and individualized chemical company.” 

Showa Denko is taking various measures in recognition
that high-level corporate governance and compliance are
essential for its continued growth and long-term value. The
Company is committed to the principles of Responsible
Care and is vigorously carrying out an action plan to pro-
tect the environment as well as health and safety.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains statements relating to management’s projections of future profits, the possible achievement of the Company’s financial

goals and objectives, and management’s expectations for the Company’s product development program. The Company cannot guarantee that

these expectations and projections will be realized or correct. Actual results may differ materially from the results anticipated in the statements includ-

ed herein due to a variety of factors, including such economic factors as fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as well as market supply

and demand conditions. The timely commercialization of products under development by the Company may be disrupted or delayed by a variety

of factors, including market acceptance, the introduction of new products by competitors, and changes in regulations or laws. The foregoing list of fac-

tors is not inclusive. Please refer to page 38 for more information concerning risk factors.

We at Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies will
provide products and services that are useful and safe
and exceed our customers’ expectations, thereby enhanc-
ing the value of the Group, giving satisfaction to our share-
holders, and contributing to the sound growth of society on
a global scale.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2004 2003 2002 2004

For the year
Net sales............................................................................ ¥740,706 ¥689,366 ¥674,018 $7,107,825
Operating income .............................................................. 52,071 38,546 31,303 499,674
Net income ........................................................................ 7,596 10,317 13,024 72,887
Depreciation and amortization............................................ 34,115 34,543 36,956 327,365

At year-end
Total assets ....................................................................... 943,908 939,879 986,544 9,057,744
Total stockholders’ equity .................................................. 177,701 166,087 150,121 1,705,217

Yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Per share
Net income (Note 2) ........................................................... ¥006.66 ¥009.07 ¥011.44 $0.064
Stockholders’ equity .......................................................... 155.53 145.96 131.92 1.49
Cash dividends (applicable to the period) ........................... 3.00 2.00 — 0.029

Number of employees at year-end ................................... 11,166 10,623 10,933
Notes: 1. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥104.21 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange 

at December 31, 2004.
2. Fully diluted income per share for the fiscal year of 2004 was ¥6.35.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
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chemical technologies and continuously develop-

ing our products from the customer viewpoint. In

2004, the second year of the Sprout Project, we

essentially completed the structural reform of our

hard disk (HD) media and petrochemicals busi-

nesses. As continued rapid growth, centering

on small-diameter media, is expected for the

HD media business and its earning base has

been strengthened, we are now including this

business in the category of strategic growth

businesses. Meanwhile, the olefins and organic

chemicals businesses, due to their improved

cost-competitiveness, have now been categorized

as base businesses.

In the area of strategic growth businesses, we

have made remarkable progress through the strate-

gic market unit (SMU) approach, as exemplified

by the development and commercialization of our

blue light-emitting diodes (LEDs). We have achieved

our operating income and interest-bearing debt

reduction goals for 2005 a year ahead of schedule.

Business Results for 2004

While facing increases in the costs of such major

raw materials as naphtha and aluminum ingot,

the Japanese chemical and nonferrous metals

industries enjoyed a growing demand, due mainly

to higher exports to China and other Asian coun-

tries. In the electronic parts and materials indus-

try, demand grew throughout the first half of the

year, centering on digital appliance applications,

but the market stagnated in the second half, due

to inventory adjustments. Under these circum-

stances, Showa Denko continued its structural

reform and cost-reduction efforts while promoting

expansion of strategic growth businesses.

Showa Denko’s consolidated net sales in 2004

increased 7.4%, to ¥740,706 million, and operat-

ing income jumped 35.1%, to ¥52,071 million, as

all business segments, except Chemicals, record-

ed increases in profits. The main contributing fac-

tors were higher selling prices for petrochemicals,

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT
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At Showa Denko K.K., we are proceeding with

the implementation of our growth strategy in line

with our three-year consolidated business plan,

the “Sprout Project,” which kicked off at the begin-

ning of 2003. The basic concept of the strategy is

to establish Showa Denko as a truly focused and

individualized chemical company—a company

that develops and offers an increasing number

of individualized, competitive, and high-value

product lines in selected high-growth markets. At

the same time, we have further clarified our busi-

ness portfolio, allocating resources to strategic

growth businesses in an efficient and focused

manner to accelerate the speed of growth.

Achievements in the Second Year of 
the Sprout Project

We are pursuing synergies through the inter-

connection of inorganic/aluminum and organic

Business Portfolio

Base businesses Businesses that
need restructuringg

Strategic growth
businesses

Petrochemicals

Chemicals

Electronics

Inorganic
Materials

gg

Aluminum and
Others

Specialty chemicals (raw 
material for cosmetics, 
medical/agrochemical 
intermediates, amino acids, 
etc.)

Specialty gases & chemicals 
for semiconductor processing  
Compound semiconductors 
Rare earth magnetic alloys 
Solid conductive polymer 
aluminum capacitors  
Hard disks

Fine carbons  
Advanced ceramics

High-performance aluminum 
components*
High-purity aluminum foils for 
capacitors
Heat exchangers  
Environment-related business

Basic chemicals (ammonia, 
industrial gases, etc.)
Agrochemicals  
Disinfectants 

Graphite electrodes
Commodity ceramics

Aluminum cans

Olefins
Organic chemicals
Polyolefins
Plastic products

Hard disks

Commodity  
ceramics

* Shotic, highly heat-conductive aluminum alloy (ST60), and aluminum cylinders for laser printers

Olefins
Organic chemicals
Specialty polymers (vinyl 
ester, allyl ester)

g

Ingot/alloys
Commodity
aluminum
materials

y

Six-Year Consolidated Business Plan

Realizing our vision
Customer/shareholder 
satisfaction

Contributing to society 
on a global scale

Establishing ourselves as aE  focused and
individualized chemical company2000

2001

2002

2004

2005

2003

Growth strategy 
through the Sprout Project

Transformation from a diversified chemical company 
into a focused and individualized chemical company

Strategic reduction in scale
through the Cheetah Project

Achieved restructuring
Attained financial goals

Steady implementation of growth strategy
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a substantial increase in the sales volumes of HD

media, higher selling prices for inorganic chemicals,

and cost reductions in all segments. Net income

fell 26.4%, to ¥7,596 million, however, partly

due to the recording of an extraordinary loss of

¥11,807 million following the early implementa-

tion of an accounting standard for the impairment

of fixed assets. Dividends of ¥3.00 per share, up

¥1.00 per share from the previous year, were

paid to shareholders on record at the end of

December 2004. 

Our capital expenditures in 2004 totaled

¥29,916 million, including those for the expansion

of production facilities for HD media, blue LEDs,

and solid conductive polymer aluminum surface-

mount capacitors as well as for further expansion,

rationalization, production maintenance, and

environmental protection. 

As a result of an increase in operating income

and continued debt-reduction efforts, the out-

standing balance of interest-bearing debt as

of the end of 2004 decreased ¥24,956 million,

to ¥502,433 million.

Segment Performances

In terms of net sales for the year, the Petrochemicals

segment contributed 34.3%, Chemicals 10.8%,

Electronics 15.2%, Inorganic Materials 7.5%, and

Aluminum 32.2%. A breakdown of net sales and

operating income by segment is as follows:

In the Petrochemicals segment, sales rose

8.2%, to ¥254,351 million, and operating income

jumped 68.2%, to ¥20,132 million. Sales of olefins

increased due to a rise in selling prices, reflecting

soaring feedstock prices and a rise in overseas

market prices. Sales from organic chemicals

operations were up as a result of a rise in the

selling prices of vinyl acetate and an increase in

the shipment volumes of ethyl acetate. Sales of

plastics fell substantially, as the polyethylene busi-

ness was transferred in 2003 to Japan Polyethylene

Corporation, to which the equity method was

applied. Sales of plastics by Showa Highpolymer

Co., Ltd., were up due to an increase in shipment

volumes, reflecting growing demand in Japan for

home-building materials. Sales of plastic prod-

ucts by Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd., also rose due to

increases in shipment volumes.

In the Chemicals segment, sales were up 2.5%,

to ¥80,188 million, but operating income dropped

19.1%, to ¥4,845 million. Sales of industrial gases

fell as a result of the transfer of the oxygen/nitro-

gen/hydrogen businesses to TG Showa K.K.

Sales of industrial chemicals also fell, due to our

withdrawal from the epichlorohydrin business in

2003. Overall sales of gases & chemicals increased

due to the start of full-scale operations at our

facility for processing waste plastics. In the area

of specialty chemicals, the shipment volumes of

Shoprene polychloroprene rubber increased and

those of Shodex analytical columns remained

steady. However, the shipment volumes of stabi-

lized vitamin C for feed additive and agrochemical

intermediates fell, resulting in a decrease in

overall sales of specialty chemicals. Sales of

Mitsuo Ohashi, Representative Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors (left)
Kyohei Takahashi, President and CEO



Showa Denko HD Trace Corporation
in Taiwan

Oita Petrochemical Complex
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agrochemicals at SDS Biotech K.K. were main-

tained at the previous year’s level.

In the Electronics segment, sales rose 18.7%,

to ¥112,455 million, and operating income

jumped 39.4%, to ¥14,919 million. Although the

shipment volumes of compound semiconductors

were maintained at the previous year’s level,

sales of HD media increased substantially follow-

ing the consolidation of Showa Denko HD Trace

Corporation and expansion of the Group’s HD

production capacity in the second half of the

year. The shipment volumes of specialty gases

increased for liquid crystal display (LCD) applica-

tions in addition to steady demand for use in

semiconductor processing. Sales of rare earth

magnetic alloys increased due to a recovery in

the demand for neodymium-based magnets.

Sales of VGCF carbon nanofibers and electronic

ceramics were also up, due to increases in ship-

ment volumes.

In the Inorganic Materials segment, sales rose

8.5%, to ¥55,295 million, and operating income

skyrocketed 129.8%, to ¥6,099 million. Sales of

ceramics increased due to steady shipments of

alumina. Sales of graphite electrodes by Showa

Denko K.K. and its U.S. subsidiary Showa Denko

Carbon, Inc., increased due to steady shipment

volumes and selling prices, reflecting higher

demand for steel worldwide. 

In the Aluminum segment, sales increased

3.5%, to ¥238,419 million, and operating income

rose 5.8%, to ¥12,321 million. Sales from ingot

marketing rose due to higher selling prices, reflect-

ing rising London Metal Exchange (LME) prices.

Sales of rolled products were up, mainly due

to increased shipment volumes of high-purity

aluminum foils for capacitors. Sales of Shotic forged

aluminum products were also up, as a result of

an increase in shipment volumes for automotive

applications. Sales of extrusions/specialty prod-

ucts rose due to increases in shipment volumes.

Meanwhile, sales of heat exchangers were down

as a result of decreases in shipment volumes in

Japan and North America. Sales of aluminum

cans were also down, due to a decline in selling

prices.

Expanding the HD Business

To meet growing demand for HD media, we

acquired two-thirds of the outstanding shares of

Trace Storage Technology Corp., an HD media

manufacturer in Taiwan. Renamed Showa Denko

HD Trace, the newly consolidated company has

been provided with Showa Denko’s latest tech-

nology. Further, we increased our HD media pro-

duction capacity by more than two million HDs a

month through debottlenecking at Showa Denko

HD Trace and facilities in Chiba, Japan, and

Singapore. Since the expansion, Showa Denko

has established its status as the largest inde-

pendent HD media supplier in the world, with a

production capacity of more than 10 million HDs

a month. Demand for HD media is growing for

consumer electronics applications, including DVD

recorders with built-in hard disk drives and mobile

music players, in addition to conventional PC

applications. We will continue to develop and pro-

vide advanced HD media in response to sophisti-

cated market requirements.

Strengthening the Petrochemicals Business

With the strengthening of the cost-competitive-

ness of our ethylene plant in Oita as well as the

smooth start-up of two joint ventures—Japan

Polyethylene Corporation, the largest polyethyl-

ene company in Japan, and Japan Ethyl Acetate

Co., Ltd.—the structural reform of our petrochem-

icals business is nearing completion. Our petro-

chemicals business has achieved the top level of

cost-competitiveness in Japan and become

resistant to market fluctuations. Now categorized

as one of our base businesses, this business is

expected to continue to provide a high level of

cash flows.

MMESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT
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Participating in the Blue LED Business

In SMU projects, as an example of our progress,

we have developed a blue LED, based on gallium

nitride (GaN), that boasts the highest level of

brightness on the market. By combining our pro-

prietary compound semiconductor and HD media

production technologies, we have established a

proprietary wafer structure and a chip production

process. The newly developed 12mW blue LED

has the additional advantages of low forward

voltage and low electricity consumption. GaN

LEDs are now used mainly in the backlighting of

LCDs and as a keypad light source for mobile

phones. Blue LEDs can be combined with fluo-

rescent materials to provide white lighting. Along

with their improvement in power, demand for

blue LEDs will increase rapidly for use in car

headlights and general illumination. 

Promoting Responsible Care Activities and
Strengthening Corporate Governance

We are committed to the principles of Responsible

Care, which means that we are working to ensure

the health and safety of our employees and of

people everywhere as well as to protect the environ-

ment from harm caused by chemical substances

throughout such substances’ entire life cycles,

namely, the development, production, distribu-

tion, use, final consumption, and disposal of

these substances. 

As part of our efforts to contribute to the preven-

tion of global warming and protect natural resources,

we reduced our rate of energy consumption by

basic energy unit in 2003 to 80% of the 1990 figure.

Furthermore, approximately 20% of our total electric-

ity requirements are met by our hydroelectric power

plants, a clean source of energy.

As of March 2005, all Showa Denko K.K. sites

and 17 of its subsidiaries and affiliates were certi-

fied under the ISO 14001 international standard

for environmental management systems.

We attach great importance to corporate

governance as a means to ensure sustainable

growth and long-term corporate value and have

established a Corporate Ethics Committee to

strengthen compliance with laws and regulations

and to achieve higher levels in this area.

Change in Management

At the board of directors’ meeting on January 4,

2005, Mitsuo Ohashi, then President and CEO,

was appointed Representative Director and

Chairman of the Board of Directors. Kyohei

Takahashi, Senior Managing Director, was elected

to succeed Mr. Ohashi as new President and CEO.

The new management will work hard to strength-

en competitiveness and improve earning power

by accelerating the expansion of strategic growth

businesses and further curtailing costs. 

Showa Denko promises to establish itself as a

truly focused and individualized chemical compa-

ny by carrying out the Sprout Project. By doing

so, we will enhance our corporate value, give sat-

isfaction to our shareholders, meet customers’

expectations, and contribute to the sound growth

of society on a global scale.

We look forward to your continued support.

March 30, 2005

Mitsuo Ohashi, Representative Director and

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Kyohei Takahashi, President and CEO

GaN-based blue LEDs 
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PPROGRESS MADE IN THE SECOND YEAR OF THE “SPROUT PROJECT”

Showa Denko and its Group companies have
been carrying out a three-year, growth-oriented
consolidated business plan, the “Sprout
Project,” that extends from 2003 through 2005.

Under the project, Showa Denko aims to
establish itself as a “focused and individualized
chemical company” by fully utilizing its techni-
cal advantages created through the intercon-
nections of its proprietary inorganic/aluminum
and organic chemical technologies. As part of
that strategy, we have identified 12 SMUs—
market segments in which we can expect to
achieve high growth as a result of the said tech-
nologies—in the areas of electronics, automo-
tive parts, and personal care/environmental
goods. We are allocating our resources prefer-
entially to SMU projects in order to develop indi-
vidualized, competitive, high-value product lines.

Financial goals achieved one year ahead of
schedule
Operating income for 2004 amounted to ¥52.1 billion,
thus hitting the income target for 2005 (¥50.0 billion) a
year ahead of schedule. The operating income/net sales
ratio also improved, from 5.6% in 2003 to 7.0% in 2004,
owing to the progress of structural reform and expansion
of high-value businesses. Interest-bearing debt was
reduced to ¥502.4 billion at the end of 2004, enabling us
to achieve the 2005 target (¥520.0 billion) a year ahead of
schedule. The debt/equity ratio improved to 2.8 times.

2005 (Sprout 
2003 2004 Project targets)

Operating income ¥38.5 billion ¥52.1 billion ¥50.0 billion

Operating income/
net sales ratio 5.6% 7.0% 7.0% up

ROA (operating income 
basis) 4.1% 5.5% 5.1%

Interest-bearing debt ¥527.4 billion ¥502.4 billion ¥520.0 billion

Debt/equity ratio 3.2 times 2.8 times 3.0 times

Implementation of growth strategy
We have classified our businesses into three categories:
strategic growth businesses, base businesses, and busi-
nesses that need restructuring. The roles of respective
categories have been clarified and their specific business
strategies have been established. 

1. Establishment of our “road maps”
We are making progress with the 12 SMUs and have
established a road map (growth scenario) for our major
SMU projects based on a customer-oriented market
approach and development of advanced technologies
through a technology platform. We have also established
a road map for the HD media business, which is now
included in the category of strategic growth businesses
following the completion of its structural reform.

(1) HDs: Becoming a world leader
Demand for HDs is expected to grow fast, especially in the
area of very small media, one inch or less in diameter, to
be installed in small video cameras and mobile phones.

The production of very small media requires even high-
er memory density. We will take full advantage of our thin-
film deposition and precision-processing expertise to
develop such next-generation technologies as vertical
media, discrete media, and patterned media.

As the world’s largest OEM supplier of HD media, we
are committed to meeting customer requirements by fully
utilizing the capacities at our three production sites (Japan,
Taiwan, and Singapore) based on our most advanced
technologies.

(2) Solid conductive polymer aluminum surface-mount
capacitors: Expanding sales by establishing stable pro-
duction technology
We are set to increase the sales of these capacitors having
high capacitance, high voltage, and low-height characteris-
tics to meet the growing demand for applications in mobile
phones, digital home appliances, and automotive devices.

(3) C4F6: A high-performance etching gas for IC pro-
cessing at line widths of 90nm or less
We have become the world’s first commercial producer of
C4F6. 

(4) VGCF: Developing composites
VGCF is increasingly used in lithium-ion batteries to
increase their performances. In addition, we have devel-
oped VGCF-S, a new grade for use in resin composites. 

2. Sprouts
The following are some of the new products we have
developed through the SMU approach:

(1) Blue LEDs based on GaN: Developed a proprietary
technology, realizing the highest level of brightness on
the market

(2) Autoprep @ Series: Developed a new sample-
preparation cartridge for highly efficient analyses of
trace amounts of chemical substances

(3) Organic electroluminescent materials: Developed
an innovative phosphorescent polymer boasting the
world’s longest durability of 10,000 hours

Improved earning power through structural
reform
We have carried out the following structural reforms to
strengthen the competitiveness and cash-earning power
of our base businesses:

1. Petrochemicals: Achieved a “simple and compact”
structure, becoming a stable source of profit and cash
flow

(1) Competitive ethylene plant
Our ethylene plant has become one of the most cost-
competitive ethylene production facilities in Japan through
optimization of production setup, drastic cost reductions,
and higher diversification of feedstock.

Solid conductive polymer aluminum
capacitors
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(2) Shift to a business structure resistant to fluctuations
in naphtha prices
The shift has been achieved as a result of the completion
of alliances in our polyolefins operations.

(3) Acetyl chain products take leading positions
Our competitive acetyl chain products, including ethyl
acetate, command leading positions in world markets. In
addition, we are making steady progress toward meeting
the requirements of the growing Chinese market.

2. Chemicals: Striving to improve profitability

(1) Base businesses
We integrated the oxygen/nitrogen/hydrogen businesses
with those of the Tokyo Gas Group and strengthened the
competitive position of the ammonia business by increas-
ing the utilization rate of the waste plastic gasification plant.

(2) Growth businesses
We have been accelerating the growth of such businesses
as cosmetic raw materials (stabilized vitamins, UV shields,
etc.), Shodex (high-speed liquid chromatography
columns), semiconductor processing materials (photore-
sist, etc.), and fluorescent nanoparticles.

3. Aluminum: Restructuring to be completed in 2005
through drastic cost reductions and expansion of
high-value products operations

(1) Automotive heat exchangers
Resuming growth through the development of next-
generation products, establishment of a joint venture in
China, and drastic cost reductions

(2) Rolled products/extrusions
Restructuring to be completed through the shift to high-
value products, establishment of optimum production
setup, reorganization of marketing/distribution channels,
and drastic cost reductions

(3) Fabrications business 
Striving to expand high-value products operations, includ-
ing Shotic forgings, aluminum cylinders for laser printers,
high-purity foils for capacitors, lithium-ion battery pack-
ages, and aluminum cans

(4) Organizational changes
We consolidated the head office/marketing functions at
Oyama. The integration of production and marketing has
increased the speed of decision-making processes. In
addition, we established the Aluminum Technology Center
to realize the integrated control of core technologies com-
mon to the Aluminum sector.
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target
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Strategic Market Units (SMUs)
 

Electronics

Automotive Parts Personal Care/  
Environmental Goods

Communications  
devices

Displays and  
their materials

Capacitors and  
their materials

Semiconductor processing materials

Battery materials

Heat exchangers

Parts/components that  
facilitate the production  

of lighter cars

Magnetic materials

Printer parts

Energy-saving systems

Life science products

Raw materials for cosmetics

Surge projected for the “post-Sprout” period

Support Cooperation

Organic electronic materials,

Batteries, Capacitors,  Magnetic  

recording materials, Inorganic

electronic materials, Crystal growth  

process, Thin film deposition

process, Precision fabricating

process, Micro-system process,

Functional gases, Ultimate conditions

process

Heat transfer system,

Casting process, Plasticity  

processing, Bonding,  

Functional metallic materials

Functional molecular design,

Controlled reaction design, High- 

performance catalysts, Specialty  

polymer design, Fine particles, 

Biochemistry, Organic chemicals  

manufacturing process, Surface  

and interface chemistry 

Structural Analysis; Chemical Analysis; Computational Science

27 Technology Platforms

SproutsSprouts

How the Sprout Project is changing the company

Petrochemicals 
Commodity ceramics 
Commodity aluminum

products

Strengthening
the HD

business

Increasing
competitiveness
Cost reductions 

Base businesses

SMU strategy

Strategic growth
businesses

Implementing
reform

Businesses to be
restructured

Basic chemicals
Electrodes

Aluminum cans

Inventory
reductions

Issue of CBs
Sale of assets

Greater financial 
strength

Improving profitability of
existing base businesses

Expansion in high-growth
markets

By completing the Sprout Project,
we will establish ourselves as an “individualized chemical company.”

Surge projected for the “post-Sprout” period
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SSHOWA DENKO AT A GLANCE

Chemicals

Chemicals (caustic soda, chlorine, acrylonitrile, and ammo-
nia), gases (fluorocarbons, oxygen, nitrogen, and hydrogen),
specialty chemicals (amino acids, stabilized vitamin C, ana-
lytical columns, and specialty polymers), and agrochemicals

Electronics

HDs, compound semiconductors, rare earth magnetic alloys,
specialty gases, alternatives to chlorinated solvents and other
high-purity chemicals, ceramic materials for semiconductors,
and fine carbons

Inorganic Materials

Ceramics (aluminum hydroxide, alumina, abrasives, and
refractories) and carbons (graphite electrodes)

Aluminum

Ingots, sheets, extruded products, high-purity foils for capaci-
tors, fabricated products (forged products, heat exchangers,
aluminum cylinders for laser printers, and beverage cans)

Percentage of Net Sales Sales: 254,351
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 80,188
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 112,455
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 55,295
(Millions of yen)

Sales: 238,419
(Millions of yen)

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

Percentage of Net Sales

10.8%

Petrochemicals

Olefins (ethylene and propylene), organic chemicals (acetic
acid, vinyl acetate monomer, and ethyl acetate) and plastic
products
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Petrochemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2004 2003 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 254,351 235,124 +19,227 +8.2%

Operating income 20,132 11,971 +8,161 +68.2%

The Petrochemicals segment’s sales for 2004 increased
8.2%, to ¥254,351 million, as sales of olefins and organ-
ic chemicals rose due to higher selling prices, offsetting
the effect of the transfer of the polyethylene business.
Operating income jumped 68.2%, despite rising naph-
tha costs, to ¥20,132 million, as the market prices
went up, reflecting the tight supply on the market.

Olefins
Ethylene production in Japan totaled 7.57 million tons
in 2004, an increase of 2.7% from the preceding year,
reflecting growing demand from China and other Asian
countries and economic recovery in Japan. Utilization
rates of ethylene plants in Japan remained at high lev-
els. Showa Denko’s ethylene production increased
4%, to 671,000 tons. Although shipment volumes of
ethylene declined slightly as a result of the start-up of
our new ethyl acetate plant in Oita, sales of olefins
were up, owing to higher olefin prices and increased
shipment volumes of propylene. Operating income rose
substantially, due to continued cost reductions and
strong markets in Asia.

New Developments In 2000, we strategically
reduced the ethylene production capacity at our Oita
Petrochemical Complex from 750,000 tons a year (two
trains) to 600,000 tons a year (one train). Since then,

the ethylene plant has maintained high-capacity utiliza-
tion. While we are allowed to independently inspect the
safety of our ethylene plant under the High Pressure
Gas Safety Law, we have obtained governmental
approval to lengthen the intervals between scheduled
shutdowns from two years to four. The approval of
extended operation has further improved the competi-
tiveness of the Oita ethylene plant.

Organic Chemicals
Sales of organic chemicals increased due to the start-
up of the new ethyl acetate plant as well as a rise in the
selling prices of acetic acid, vinyl acetate, and ally alco-
hol in the second half of the year, reflecting increases in
feedstock costs. Operating income from organic chem-
icals operations increased as well.

New Developments We established Japan Ethyl
Acetate, a joint venture with Kyowa Hakko Kogyo Co.,
Ltd., in 2003 for the production of ethyl acetate, the
demand for which has been growing rapidly in the
Asian market. The new company started operating its
100,000-ton-a-year plant in April 2004.

Plastics
Sales of plastics declined substantially, due to the
transfer in September 2003 of the polyethylene busi-
ness to Japan Polyethylene, to which the equity method
was applied. Sales of plastics by Showa Highpolymer
were up due to an increase in shipment volumes,
reflecting growing demand in Japan for home-building
materials. Sales of plastic products by Heisei Polymer
also rose due to an increase in shipment volumes.

New Developments Heisei Polymer became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Showa Denko in August
2004 through a share exchange agreement. This
was intended as a measure to strengthen the cost-
competitiveness of the Group’s plastic products
business.

Chemicals
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2004 2003 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 80,188 78,232 +1,956 +2.5%

Operating income 4,845 5,989 -1,144 -19.1%

The Chemicals segment’s sales increased 2.5%, to
¥80,188 million, due partly to the start of full-scale
operations at our facility for processing waste plastics.

RREVIEW OF OPERATIONS

New ethyl acetate plant (Oita)



Specialty Chemicals
Shipment volumes of Shoprene polychloroprene syn-
thetic rubber increased and those of Shodex analytical
columns remained steady. However, shipment volumes
of stabilized vitamin C for feed additive and agrochemical
intermediates fell, resulting in a decrease in the overall
sales of specialty chemicals. Sales of agrochemicals at
SDS Biotech were maintained at the previous year’s
level. Operating income from specialty chemicals fell,
due mainly to the stagnation of agrochemical interme-
diate and feed-additive stabilized vitamin C operations.

New Developments We developed a new iso-
cyanate product, Karenz AOI, containing both acrylic
and isocyanate groups. The product enables high-speed
photo-curing of resins. Sample shipments began for
use in the electronics and printing industries.

We delivered our innovative waste anesthetic gas
disposal system to Karolinska University Hospital in
Huddinge, Sweden. The system helps reduce emis-
sions of nitrous oxide (N2O), which is a greenhouse gas.

We developed the world’s first grade of stabilized
vitamin C that permeates deep into the skin. Sales of
the product, effective for wrinkle care when used as an
additive in cosmetics, started in early 2005 under the
trade name of Apprecier.

Electronics
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2004 2003 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 112,455 94,735 +17,720 +18.7%

Operating income 14,919 10,700 +4,219 +39.4%

The Electronics segment’s sales rose 18.7%, to
¥112,455 million, and operating income jumped
39.4%, to ¥14,919 million. While shipment volumes of
compound semiconductors were maintained at the
previous year’s level due to inventory adjustments in
the latter half of the year, sales of HD media increased
substantially following the consolidation of Showa
Denko HD Trace in July and expansion of the Group’s
HD production capacities. Sales of various electronic
materials also increased.
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HDD with 0.85-inch diameter

However, operating income dropped 19.1%, to ¥4,845
million, mainly due to the stagnation of agrochemical
intermediate and feed-additive stabilized vitamin C
operations.

Gases & Chemicals
Sales of industrial gases fell as a result of the transfer of
the oxygen/nitrogen/hydrogen businesses to TG Showa,
to which the equity method was applied. Sales of
industrial chemicals also fell, due to our withdrawal
from the epichlorohydrin business in 2003. Overall
sales of gases & chemicals increased due to the start
of full-scale operations at our facility for processing waste
plastics, but operating income decreased.

New Developments In the first half of 2004, follow-
ing the introduction of a recycling project in 2003, we
began to make use of waste plastic in our commer-
cial production of ammonia at the Kawasaki plant. We
utilize waste plastic—used containers and wrapping
for consumer products as well as industrial waste—
as feedstock for the production of ammonia and
other chemical products. The new process enables
us to almost halve the consumption of conventional 
petroleum-based feedstock, including naphtha, and
to reduce impact on the environment.

We established TG Showa, a joint venture with
Tokyo Gas Chemicals Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary
of Tokyo Gas Co., Ltd., and it began operations in July
2004. The new company, which sells the parent com-
pany’s industrial gases, centering on oxygen, nitrogen,
and hydrogen, aims to raise the efficiency of marketing
and logistics in the Kanto region—the main market—
and improve the competitiveness and profitability of
the business.

Shipment of industrial gases (Kawasaki)



on the market. The development resulted from the
combination of proprietary technologies for the produc-
tion of compound semiconductors and HD media.
Demand for blue LEDs is growing for such applications
as mobile phones, outdoor displays, illuminations, and
automotive devices.

Rare Earths
Sales of our rare earth magnetic alloys increased due to
the recovery of demand for neodymium-based magnets
and the start-up of our alloy plant in Baotou, China. 

Specialty Gases for Semiconductor
Processing
Despite inventory adjustments by the semi-
conductor industry in the second half of the year, ship-
ment volumes remained steady and demand for LCD
applications expanded. As a result, sales of specialty
gases for semiconductor processing were up. 

Showa Denko K.K. 11

Hard Disks
Demand for hard disk drives (HDDs) grew rapidly in
2004 for consumer electronics applications, resulting in
increased shipment volumes of HDDs and HD media.
Our HD media sales also grew, centering on 1.8-inch
glass-substrate media, an area in which our market
position is especially strong. The consolidation of Showa
Denko HD Trace and the production capacity expan-
sion contributed to the sales growth. The Group’s HD
media production facilities in Japan, Singapore, and
Taiwan continued almost full-capacity operations
throughout 2004.

New Developments In July 2004, we acquired
two-thirds of the issued shares of Trace Storage
Technology, an HD media manufacturer in Taiwan,
through purchase of new shares, and provided our
new technology to the resulting consolidated sub-
sidiary, Showa Denko HD Trace. Further, we increased
our HD media production capacity by more than two
million HDs a month through debottlenecking at Showa
Denko HD Trace and facilities in Chiba, Japan, and
Singapore. Since the consolidation of Trace, Showa
Denko has established its status as the largest inde-
pendent HD media supplier in the world, with a produc-
tion capacity of more than 10 million HDs a month.

Compound Semiconductors
Shipment volumes of laser-diode epitaxial wafers for
optical pickups increased in the first half of the year.
However, due to inventory adjustments of gallium
phosphide (GaP) epitaxial wafers for LEDs in the sec-
ond half, overall shipment volumes of compound semi-
conductors for 2004 were almost unchanged from the
previous year’s level.

New Developments We developed a GaN-based
blue LED that boasts the highest level of brightness

Testing of blue LED chip life

Baotou Showa Rare Earth Hi-Tech New Materials
Co., Ltd., produces Nd-Fe-B magnet alloy.

Patterns of dry etching with C4F6 at line widths as narrow as 90nm
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New Developments In October 2004, we estab-
lished a Taiwan subsidiary, Taiwan Showa Chemicals
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which will join our current
facility in Japan in producing high-purity ammonia to
meet rapidly increasing demand. High-purity ammonia
is used as a nitrogen source in the production of GaN
LED and electronic devices as well as a nitride-film-
forming gas in the production of semiconductors and
LCDs. Showa Specialty Gas (Taiwan) Co., Ltd., a
specialty gas marketing subsidiary, has been consoli-
dated since the second half of 2004.

Ceramics
Sales of electronic ceramics grew due to increases in
shipment volumes of titanium oxide for capacitors and
polishing materials for LCDs.

New Developments To develop and market titani-
um oxide paste for dye-sensitized solar cells, we formed
an alliance with Tsutomu Miyasaka, a professor at Toin
University of Yokohama, who is an authority in this
area. We invested in a venture capital established by
the university for the dye-sensitized solar cell business.

Carbons
Sales of fine carbons, including VGCF carbon nanofibers,
increased as shipments to domestic customers grew
for lithium-ion battery applications and as we obtained
new customers overseas.

New Developments We developed and started
sample shipments of VGCF-S, a new grade of carbon
nanofiber suitable for addition to resins in which electri-
cal conductivity is required. 

Capacitors
Shipment volumes of solid conductive polymer alu-
minum surface-mount capacitors increased following
the completion of our expansion of the Oyama facility.
The Company established a Capacitor Division in
January 2005 to conduct this business on a full scale.

Inorganic Materials
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2004 2003 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 55,295 50,969 +4,325 +8.5%

Operating income 6,099 2,654 +3,445 +129.8%

The Inorganic Materials segment’s sales rose 8.5%, to
¥55,295 million, and operating income skyrocketed
129.8%, to ¥6,099 million, due to steady shipments and
solid prices both in the ceramics and carbons & metallic
materials businesses.

Ceramics
Sales of ceramics increased due mainly to steady ship-
ments of alumina. Operating income also increased.

New Developments Lianyungang Zhaoling
Abrasives Co., Ltd., our joint venture with Mitsubishi
Corporation and Shoko Co., Ltd., for the production of
ceramic abrasives grains, began trial runs in late 2004
at its plant in Jiangsu Province, China.

Carbons & Metallic Materials
Both sales and operating income from this business
rose as sales of graphite electrodes by Showa Denko
K.K. and its U.S. subsidiary Showa Denko Carbon
increased due to steady shipment volumes and selling
prices. 

Shipment of graphite electrodes (Omachi)

Film-type, dye-sensitized solar cell capable of achieving over 4V.

Lianyungang Zhaoling Abrasives Co., Ltd. (China) 



New Developments Showa Denko (Dalian) Co.,
Ltd., began full-scale operations in China to produce
aluminum cylinders for laser printers.

Shotic
Sales of Shotic forged products were up due to
increases in shipments in Japan, Europe, and
Singapore for car air-conditioner parts applications.

Heat Exchangers 
Sales of heat exchangers fell due to decreases in ship-
ment volumes in Japan and North America. Sales in
Europe were maintained at the previous year’s level.

New Developments We started supplying BAR
Honda, a Formula 1 team, with aluminum radiators.

In November 2004, to participate in the Chinese
automotive market, we acquired a 35% stake in a
local car air-conditioner heat exchanger manufacturer,
which subsequently changed its name to Grand
Ocean-Showa Auto Air Conditioning (Dalian) Co., Ltd.
This company started supplying the latest models,
which are based on Showa Denko technology and
meet Volkswagen’s worldwide specifications, to the
Volkswagen Group in China in the first half of 2005. 

Aluminum Cans
Sales of aluminum cans fell, as the increase in ship-
ment volumes was not sufficient to offset the decrease
in selling prices. 

New Developments We commissioned an aluminum
bottle production line and started selling this new prod-
uct in the second half of 2004.
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Aluminum
CONSOLIDATED BUSINESS RESULTS (Millions of yen)

2004 2003 Difference Rate of change (%)

Sales 238,419 230,306 +8,113 +3.5%

Operating income 12,321 11,647 +674 +5.8%

The Aluminum segment’s sales increased 3.5%, to
¥238,419 million, and operating income rose 5.8%, to
¥12,321 million. Sales of aluminum ingot increased
due to higher selling prices, reflecting rising LME
prices. Sales of extrusions, rolled products, and Shotic
forged products also increased, offsetting the decline
in shipment volumes of automotive heat exchangers in
Japan and North America.

Rolled Products
Sales of rolled products were up due to increased ship-
ment volumes of high-purity aluminum foils for capaci-
tors, reflecting the growing demand for DVDs and
plasma display panels.

New Developments We developed high-performance
aluminum reflectors for LCDs and began sample ship-
ments. The product is an extension of our ST60 aluminum
alloy, used as heat sinks for plasma display panels. Due
to the proprietary white coating, the new product offers
high heat dissipation efficiency and light resistance.

Extrusions & Specialty Products
We established an Extrusions/Specialty Products
Division in July 2004 by merging the Extrusion Division
and the Aluminum Specialty Products Division. Overall
sales were up as a result of increased shipment vol-
umes of extrusions, primarily large extrusions, rods,
and tubes, while sales of specialty products were
maintained at the previous year’s level. 

Shotic forged aluminum products

Automotive heat exchangers, 
BAR Honda team supplier logo
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYC
SHOWA DENKO VISION

We defined our vision in 2002 when we formulated our
new business plan, the “Sprout Project.” The vision,
though brief, addresses these three critical factors:
shareholder interests, customer satisfaction, and our
contribution to society. We know we can increase our
corporate value only when our products and services
are satisfactory to our customers and, at the same time,
useful and safe from a social point of view. Furthermore,
the increase in corporate value will enable us to give
satisfaction to our shareholders. All members of the
Showa Denko Group of companies are working together
to realize this vision and fulfill our responsibility to society.

We at Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies will
provide products and services that are useful and safe
and exceed our customers’ expectations, thereby
enhancing the value of the Group, giving satisfaction to
our shareholders, and contributing to the sound growth of
society on a global scale.

CODE OF CONDUCT AND GUIDELINES
We established the code of conduct for Showa Denko
Group employees in 1998. We then enacted its guide-
lines in the following year, clarifying the meaning of the
code through details and examples. In their daily activi-
ties, all officers and employees of the Showa Denko
Group are following the code and its guidelines to retain
public confidence, contribute to the prosperity of socie-
ty, and ensure the continued growth of the Group.

The code of conduct
As Showa Denko officers and employees,
1. We will develop and provide useful and safe technolo-

gies, products, and services to contribute to the sound
growth of society;

2. We will observe the laws of Japan and of the foreign
countries in which we operate, abide by the company
rules, and strive to maintain the social order;

3. We will conduct business in Japan and abroad based
on the principle of fair and free competition;

4. We will do our best to ensure safety and to protect the
global environment;

5. We will make sure that we maintain good communica-
tions with the public and disclose accurate information
on our company in a timely manner;

6. We will respect human rights and create a cheerful and
comfortable working environment; and

7. We will act as a member of the international society
and contribute to the development of the regions in
which we operate.

COMPLIANCE
We give the highest priority to social justice and corpo-
rate ethics. To ensure full compliance with the laws
and regulations throughout the Group, we established
a Corporate Ethics Committee in 2003. At the same
time, we opened new channels of communication
whereby anyone who is concerned about possible vio-
lation of compliance can report the matter directly to a

Company official by intranet, e-mail, telephone, or letter.
The Company will guard the informant’s privacy and
make sure that there will be no unfavorable treatment.

As from 2004, we started observing Corporate
Ethics Month in Japan. Every January, all officers and
employees will carefully reread the code of conduct and
its guidelines to renew their awareness and recheck
their behavior so as to further enhance the level of
compliance and corporate ethics. These measures
will help us prevent the occurrence of transgressions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
We have taken various measures to strengthen cor-
porate governance as a tool to ensure the continued
growth and long-term value of the Company. Examples
include:

Reform of the board of directors
In line with its increasingly global operations, the Company
introduced a corporate officers system in 2001 to increase
the speed of decision making at the board of directors’
meetings. The responsibilities of directors and corporate
officers have been defined clearly to make sure that the
board of directors can duly supervise the execution of
duties by directors and corporate officers. At the same
time, corporate officers are ensured of the efficient and
speedy execution of day-to-day operations.

Establishment of the Audit Office
The Company reorganized its Internal Audit Committee
in 2001 to strengthen internal auditing functions. The
resulting Audit Office is responsible for planning and
implementing internal audits to prevent mistakes and
wrongdoing. By doing so, the office ensures that a
proper internal control system is in place and, when
necessary, takes corrective measures. 

INVOLVEMENT IN COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES
Showa Denko Group employees are actively engaged
in the recycling of aluminum cans. As part of this activi-
ty, the Group makes donations to regional social wel-
fare organizations. The employees also cooperate with
local residents, including shopkeepers, in the recycling
of aluminum cans and then donate the resulting money
to volunteer groups that aid people with special needs. 

Involvement with local schools
Researchers at our Oita Petrochemical Complex demon-
strated chemistry experiments at Oita elementary and
junior high schools in autumn 2004 to arouse greater
interest in chemistry. Showa Denko employees also par-
ticipated in the Education, Culture, Sports, Science and
Technology Ministry’s scientific education projects, tar-
geting high school students, by giving lectures on nan-
otechnology. We aim to continue educating young
people about scientific and technological advances.

Aluminum can recycling exhibit
(Kawasaki)

Science lesson at a local primary
school (Oita)
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Showa Denko has been performing its Responsible
Care activities since 1995, when it established action
guidelines to implement the program. Responsible
Care activities are conducted within our five busi-
ness segments (12 business divisions and 12 region-
al offices), three branches, an R&D Center, and 17
subsidiaries and affiliates, based on voluntary, spe-
cific action plans prepared in line with the
Responsible Care Committee’s basic plan. The fol-
lowing are some examples of our activities:

ENERGY CONSERVATION
We are making our best efforts to conserve energy in order
to contribute to the prevention of global warming and pro-
tect natural resources. Our rate of energy consumption by
basic energy unit in 2003 was reduced to 80% of the 1990
figure, due partly to the successful implementation of opti-
mized on-line control systems. Approximately 20% of our
total electricity requirements are now met by our hydro-
electric power plants, a clean source of energy.

REDUCTION OF INDUSTRIAL WASTE
We are committed to effectively using and reducing the
volume of industrial waste discharge. Owing to various
measures, such as the use of inorganic sludge (in cement,
for example), the final volume of landfill disposal in 2003
was reduced to 15% of the 1990 base level.

PROMOTION OF RESOURCE 
CONSERVATION AND RECYCLING

We are promoting resource conservation and recycling at all
of our operation sites. For example, under the leadership of
a special committee, Showa Denko employees are actively
recycling aluminum cans and the Company is employing an
increasing amount of recycled aluminum cans and sashes

ENVIRONMENT-RELATED INVESTMENT 
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RESPONSIBLE CARE ACTIVITIES

as raw materials. In addition, we started utilizing waste
plastic—industrial waste and used containers and wrapping
for consumer products—as feedstock at our Kawasaki Plant
in 2003. The collected waste plastic is crushed, formed, and
gasified for use as synthesis gas for ammonia production.
The impurities in collected waste plastics are recovered in
the form of valuable metals, construction materials, roadbed
materials, etc., leaving no wastes at all.

DEVELOPMENT OF ENVIRONMENT-
FRIENDLY PRODUCTS AND TECHNOLOGIES

We are working hard to develop products and technolo-
gies that contribute to the protection of the environment,
health, and safety. Examples include isobutane for use as
a non-CFC coolant for Japanese appliance manufactur-
ers, a titanium oxide master batch for use as a photocata-
lyst (Nanoallomer), and high-purity C4F6 dry etching gas
with lower environmental impact.

ACQUISITION OF ISO 14001 CERTIFICATION
All of our operation sites have already acquired certifica-
tion under the ISO 14001 international standard for envi-
ronmental management systems. As of April 2005,
environmental management activities were being imple-
mented at 17 of our subsidiaries and affiliates, as well as
at our operation sites, in accordance with the standard. 

ESTABLISHMENT OF GREEN PURCHASE
GUIDELINES

We have established Green Purchase Guidelines, where-
by we will preferentially purchase environment-friendly
products from our suppliers to contribute to the protection
of the global environment. We plan to start our move toward
green purchasing with some of our business divisions and
then continue it to the whole Group.

Note: Following the merger with Showa Aluminum Corporation in 2001, the Company
extended aluminum can recycling activities to all of its operation sites. While our earli-
er statistics had covered solely the recycling at Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K., as from
2002, the volume of aluminum recovered at other operation sites is also included. In
this graph, data from 2001 and before are depicted according to the new standard.

New exhaust gas desulfurizer
(Oita) 

Responsible Care
Activities logo
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Showa Denko and its Group companies are
promoting R&D in line with their medium-term
consolidated business plan to establish techno-
logical advantages in the fields of petrochemi-
cals, fine chemicals, electronics, aluminum, and
new materials.

We are focusing our R&D resources on 12
SMUs—market segments in which we can expect
to achieve high growth by fully utilizing our core
technologies. In particular, we are continuing to
pursue and improve synergies through the inter-
connection of our inorganic/aluminum and organ-
ic chemical technologies in our aim to create
individualized product lines and businesses.

Showa Denko and its Group companies invest-
ed ¥17,576 million in R&D in 2004. A breakdown
by segment of R&D efforts and investments dur-
ing the year is as follows:

PETROCHEMICALS
In this segment, we are fully utilizing our proprietary cat-
alyst technology to meet the needs of organic chemical
manufacturers. In the area of acetyl chemicals, we are
improving catalysts for the production of acetic acid and
ethyl acetate to achieve top-level cost-competitiveness.
We are also improving catalysts for the production of vinyl
acetate and allyl acetate to further strengthen our com-
petitiveness. As for the propylene-based product line, we
are developing applications for our proprietary allyl ester
resin, mainly in the area of optical materials. At the same
time, we are developing other allyl derivatives for environ-
ment/IT-related applications. The Petrochemicals seg-
ment invested ¥2,396 million in R&D in 2004.

CHEMICALS
To quickly meet wide-ranging customer needs, we are
developing high-performance gels, organic intermedi-
ates for disinfectants and agrochemicals, base materials
for cosmetics, photosensitive materials, composites of
photosensitive resins, and nano materials. In the area of
high-performance gels, we are expanding the variety of
liquid chromatography columns and accelerating the
development of sample-preparation cartridges for analysis
of trace amounts of chemical substances. We are devel-
oping organic intermediates for disinfectants and agro-
chemicals as well as new substances for photographic
chemicals by fully utilizing our position in raw materials.
We are also developing new materials for metal-organic
chemical vapor deposition (MOCVD) processes on the
strength of our functional molecular design technology. 

We are placing on the market new vitamin C deriva-
tives, which have high anti-aging properties, to be used
in cosmetics. Development is also under way for new
vitamin E derivatives and other performance chemicals
to be used as base materials for cosmetics. We are
developing application technologies, such as formula-
tions, for our inorganic ultraviolet shielding and biosur-
factants in response to market growth.

Regarding photosensitive materials, we are develop-
ing photoimagable dry film type overcoats and water-
borne etching resist inks for flexible circuit boards as well
as photoinitiators and functional monomers through our
subsidiary Nippon Polytech Corp. We are also develop-
ing photosensitive master batches in which nanoparti-
cles of surface-modified metal oxides are mixed with
resins. We are aiming to develop applications in textiles
having photocatalytic and ultraviolet shielding functions.
The Chemicals segment’s R&D investment amounted to
¥2,137 million in 2004.

ELECTRONICS
We are accelerating the development of state-of-the-art
technologies to meet the increasingly sophisticated mar-
ket requirements. As for storage materials, we are con-
tinuing to develop new technologies as a leading HD
media manufacturer. Along with increasing the recording
density of HD media by introducing longitudinal record-
ing, we have commercialized a vertical recording tech-
nology. We are also developing small-diameter HD
media for use in mobile applications. 

In the area of display elements and communication
device materials, we are continuing to develop LEDs
with higher brightness and more diverse colors. We
have developed a GaN LED with the highest level of
brightness on the market, based on our proprietary
technology and volume production process, and

RRESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Cross-sectional view of the skin following the application of Apprecier
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demand for it is expected to grow for white lighting
applications. We are developing new grades of ultra-
bright, aluminum indium gallium phosphide (AlInGaP)
LEDs that emit red and yellow lights as well as laser-
diode epitaxial wafers for optical pickups in DVDs.
Development is also under way for myriametric-wave
epitaxial wafers for use in next-generation communica-
tion devices.

Regarding solid conductive polymer aluminum
capacitors, we are developing new grades with higher
performance for PC applications. At the same time, we
are developing other new applications by increasing
capacitance and operating voltage.

In the area of neodymium-iron-boron magnetic alloys,
we are meeting market requirements for high-perform-
ance magnets through sophisticated casting technolo-
gies and better control of alloy microstructures. We are
also developing a high-performance thermoelement and
parts for noise control devices by fully utilizing our alloy
production expertise and related technologies.

To serve the growing market for advanced displays,
we are developing organic electroluminescent materials,
based on an innovative phosphorescent polymer, as well
as energy-device applications for our VGCF and carbon
nanotube products. 

In the area of semiconductor processing, we are
developing CMP slurries for metal polishing and high-
purity gases for etching, cleaning, and film formation as
well as for detergents and solvents. The Electronics seg-
ment invested ¥4,885 million in R&D in 2004.

INORGANIC MATERIALS
Our development efforts in this segment focus on nano
materials. Having developed new grades of carbon nano-
tubes with optimized fiber diameter and length, we are
developing applications of the product in the area of
resin composites. The development of ultrafine particles
of titanium oxide and zinc oxide is progressing for use in
multilayered ceramic capacitors and as a photocatalyst.
We are developing applications of nanoparticle titanium
oxide for use as a visible-light-responsive photocatalyst
for deodorant and stain-proofing agents and as slurry
paste for dye-sensitized solar cells. Various functional
ceramic fillers and advanced ceramics, including super
abrasives, are being developed. The Inorganic Materials
segment spent ¥386 million on R&D in 2004.

ALUMINUM
We are developing light, strong, and high-performance
materials, parts, and products to meet market needs.
For automotive applications, we placed on the market
our forged suspension arms based on continuously cast
high-quality aluminum alloy rod. We are developing alloys
and forging processes for the production of automotive
compressor parts and drive units. We are also developing
thin-wall tubes and other components for small-sized,
lightweight, and high-performance car air-conditioner
heat exchangers. Also for automotive applications, we
are developing new heat exchangers and sub-frames for
next-generation, low-emission vehicles. In the area of
environmental goods, we are developing components
for energy devices and heat exchangers.

Regarding electronic applications, developments are
continuing for high-capacitance, high-voltage aluminum
foils based on our proprietary segregation solidification
ingot technology for use in electrolytic capacitors.
Furthermore, we started commercial production of
innovative aluminum bottles. The Aluminum segment’s
R&D investment amounted to ¥1,733 million in 2004.

COMMON R&D PROJECTS
Showa Denko’s Corporate R&D Center conducts basic
research into new areas with a view to fostering new
businesses and developing technologies common to
different segments. The Analysis & Physical Properties
Center and the Safety Evaluation Center support each
segment’s R&D efforts by conducting analyses and
investigations. 

In the area of energy devices, we are conducting
collaborative research for developing carbon separators
for solid polymer type fuel cells as part of a national
project. Common R&D expenditures in 2004 totaled
¥6,040 million.

Automotive suspension parts

VGCF-S, a new grade of carbon nanofiber for addition to resins
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CONSOLIDATED SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 1)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 2004

For the year
Net sales............................................................. ¥740,706 ¥689,366 ¥674,018 ¥   708,900 ¥   747,000 ¥662,747 $7,107,825

Petrochemicals ............................................... 254,351 235,124 227,753 233,647 232,294 192,996 2,440,751
Chemicals ....................................................... 80,188 78,232 68,530 73,020 78,782 63,902 769,482
Electronics ...................................................... 112,455 94,735 75,248 77,742 94,393 81,976 1,079,117
Inorganic Materials .......................................... 55,295 50,969 56,878 54,555 57,778 61,192 530,606
Aluminum........................................................ 238,419 230,306 245,610 269,936 283,752 262,682 2,287,869

Operating income ............................................... 52,071 38,546 31,303 19,169 29,594 25,073 499,674
Net income (loss) ................................................ 7,596 10,317 13,024 (34,260) 2,763 (633) 72,887
R&D expenditures ............................................... 17,576 16,983 15,443 15,447 16,588 22,513 168,659
Capital expenditures ........................................... 29,916 40,848 28,446 32,299 40,023 37,180 287,074
Depreciation and amortization............................. 34,115 34,543 36,956 38,893 40,752 42,592 327,365

At year-end
Total assets ........................................................ 943,908 939,879 986,544 1,030,872 1,088,623 961,692 9,057,744
Total stockholders’ equity ................................... 177,701 166,087 150,121 139,458 144,676 85,883 1,705,217

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 1)

Per share
Net income (loss) (Note 2) ................................... ¥006.66 ¥009.07 ¥011.44 ¥ (30.78) ¥    2.66 ¥ (0.61) $0.064
Stockholders’ equity ........................................... 155.53 145.96 131.92 122.54 139.34 82.74 1.49
Cash dividends 
(applicable to the period) ................................... 3.00 2.00 — — — — 0.029

Number of employees at year-end..................... 11,166 10,623 10,933 11,970 13,207 12,475
Notes: 1. Yen amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥104.21 to US$1, the approximate rate of exchange at December 31, 2004.

2. Fully diluted income per share for the fiscal year of 2004 was ¥6.35.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
December 31
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Consolidated net sales in 2004 totaled ¥740,706 million (US$7,108 mil-

lion), an increase of ¥51,340 million, or 7.4%, from the previous year.

Sales rose in all segments, but the increases were especially strong in

the Petrochemicals and Electronics segments. In the Petrochemicals

segment, sales of plastics decreased due to the transfer of the poly-

ethylene business in 2003 to Japan Polyethylene Corporation, to which

the equity method was applied. However, overall segment sales were

up, mainly due to increases in the selling prices of olefins at home

and abroad, reflecting soaring feedstock prices. The consolidation of

Showa Denko HD Trace Corporation in the second half of 2004 contributed

to the increase in the Electronics segment’s sales. 

The cost of sales increased ¥40,990 million, or 7.3%, to ¥604,818

million (US$5,804 million), due mainly to increases in the cost of petro-

chemical feedstock, centering on naphtha, and increases in the pro-

duction of HD media. Selling, general and administrative expenses fell

¥3,174 million, or 3.6%, to ¥83,817 million (US$804 million), owing to

reductions in distribution and other expenses and the transfer of the

polyethylene business. 

Operating income climbed ¥13,525 million, or 35.1%, to ¥52,071 mil-

lion (US$500 million), mainly due to the rise in the selling prices of

olefins, an increase in the shipment volumes of HD media, and the con-

solidation of Showa Denko HD Trace.

R&D expenditures increased ¥593 million, or 3.5%, to ¥17,576 million

(US$169 million).

A breakdown of net sales and operating income by business segment is

as follows:

Petrochemicals

Sales of olefins were up due to increases in their selling prices, reflect-

ing soaring feedstock prices and higher prices in the overseas markets.

INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NET SALES BY SEGMENT
(Billions of yen)
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Sales of organic chemicals rose, mainly due to an increase in the selling

prices of vinyl acetate and an increase in the shipment volumes of ethyl

acetate. Sales of plastics declined substantially, due to the transfer of

the polyethylene business. Sales of plastics by Showa Highpolymer Co.,

Ltd., were up due to an increase in shipment volumes, reflecting grow-

ing demand for home-building materials. Sales of plastic products by

Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd., also rose due to an increase in shipment vol-

umes. Overall, the Petrochemicals segment’s sales increased 8.2%, to

¥254,351 million (US$2,441 million). Operating income jumped 68.2%,

to ¥20,132 million (US$193 million). 

Chemicals 

Sales of industrial gases fell as a result of the transfer of the oxygen/

nitrogen/hydrogen businesses to TG Showa K.K. Sales of industrial

chemicals also fell, due to our withdrawal from the epichlorohydrin busi-

ness in 2003. Overall sales of gases & chemicals were up due to the

start of full-scale operations at our facility for processing waste plastics.

In the specialty chemicals area, the shipment volumes of Shoprene

polychloroprene synthetic rubber increased and those of Shodex analyt-

ical columns remained steady. However, the shipment volumes of stabi-

lized vitamin C for feed additive and agrochemical intermediates fell,

resulting in a decrease in overall sales of specialty chemicals. Sales of

agrochemicals at SDS Biotech K.K. were maintained at the previous

year’s level. As a result, the Chemicals segment’s sales rose 2.5%, to

¥80,188 million (US$769 million), but operating income dropped 19.1%,

to ¥4,845 million (US$46 million), due mainly to the stagnation of agro-

chemical intermediate and feed-additive stabilized vitamin C operations.

Electronics

The shipment volumes of compound semiconductors were maintained

at the previous year’s level due to inventory adjustments in the second

half of the year centering on GaP LEDs. Sales of HD media increased

substantially following the consolidation of Showa Denko HD Trace and

OPERATING INCOME
(Billions of yen)
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MMANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

expansion of facilities at home and abroad in the second half of the

year. The shipment volumes of specialty gases increased for LCD appli-

cations in addition to steady demand for use in semiconductor process-

ing. Sales of rare earth magnetic alloys increased due to a recovery in

the demand for neodymium-based magnets. Sales of VGCF carbon

nanofibers and electronic ceramics were also up, due to increases in

shipment volumes. Overall, the Electronics segment’s sales increased

18.7%, to ¥112,455 million (US$1,079 million). Operating income

jumped 39.4%, to ¥14,919 million (US$143 million).

Inorganic Materials

Sales of ceramics increased due to steady shipments of alumina. Sales

of graphite electrodes by Showa Denko K.K. and its U.S. subsidiary

Showa Denko Carbon, Inc., increased due to steady shipment volumes

and selling prices, reflecting higher demand for steel worldwide. As a

result, the Inorganic Materials segment’s sales rose 8.5%, to ¥55,295

million (US$531 million), and operating income skyrocketed 129.8%, to

¥6,099 million (US$59 million).

Aluminum

Sales from ingot marketing rose due to higher selling prices, reflecting

rising LME prices. Sales of rolled products were up, mainly due to

increased shipment volumes of high-purity aluminum foils for capacitors.

Sales of Shotic forged aluminum products were also up, as a result of

an increase in the shipment volumes for automotive applications. Sales

of extrusions/specialty products also rose due to increases in shipment

volumes. Meanwhile, sales of heat exchangers were down as a result of

decreases in shipment volumes in Japan and North America. Sales of

aluminum cans were also down, due to a decline in selling prices. As a

result, the Aluminum segment’s sales rose 3.5%, to ¥238,419 million

(US$2,288 million). Operating income rose 5.8%, to ¥12,321 million

(US$118 million).

Operations in Japan

The Petrochemicals segment’s sales rose due to increases in the selling

prices of olefins and organic chemicals and brisk exports of these prod-

ucts, offsetting the effect of the transfer of the polyethylene business.

The Electronics segment’s sales rose as a result of increases in the

shipment volumes of HD media and specialty gases for semiconductor

processing. As a result, consolidated sales from operations in Japan

increased 7.1%, to ¥663,311 million (US$6,365 million). Consolidated

operating income from operations in Japan jumped 51.8%, to ¥60,767

million (US$583 million).

Operations Overseas

Sales of aluminum heat exchangers decreased considerably as a result

of lower sales at our U.S. subsidiary. However, sales of HD media

increased due to the full-year contribution of expanded capacity at our

subsidiary in Singapore and the consolidation of Showa Denko HD Trace.

As a result, sales from operations overseas increased 10.5%, to ¥77,395

million (US$743 million). Operating income jumped 71.0%, to ¥5,531

million (US$53 million).

The gap between interest expense and interest and dividend income

declined ¥833 million, to expenses of ¥8,649 million, as a result of

reductions in interest-bearing debt. The gain on investments in non-

consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates to which the equity method is

applied decreased ¥557 million, to ¥1,056 million (US$10 million), due

mainly to the fact that SKY Aluminium Co., Ltd., which was engaged in

the aluminum rolling business, was deleted from the list in 2003. The

gain on the sale of marketable and investment securities, net, increased

to ¥2,280 million (US$22 million), as a result of a reduction in assets. A

government subsidy earmarked for waste plastic recycle plants, recorded

in 2003, was not recorded in 2004. Due to the early implementation of

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) AND NET INCOME

INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA
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an accounting standard for the impairment of fixed assets, we record-

ed a loss of ¥11,807 million (US$113 million). The loss on the sale and

disposal of property, plant and equipment, net, increased to ¥4,338 mil-

lion (US$42 million) due to our restructuring progress.

A special severance pay of ¥1,265 million (US$12 million) was

recorded as a result of restructuring, although the amount was more

than halved from 2003. A ¥2,571 million (US$25 million) reserve was

provided to prepare for the restructuring of certain businesses to be

implemented in 2005.

As a result, the Company posted before-tax income of ¥18,838 mill-

ion (US$181 million), up ¥69 million from the previous year. After income

taxes, net, of ¥9,390 million (US$90 million) and minority interests of

¥1,852 million (US$18 million), the Company recorded net income of

¥7,596 million (US$73 million), a decline of 26.4%, over the previous year.

Total Assets

Notwithstanding continued asset reduction efforts, total assets increased

¥4,029 million from the end of the previous year, to ¥943,908 million

(US$9,058 million), due partly to the consolidation of Showa Denko

HD Trace. Cash and cash equivalents increased ¥2,668 million, to

¥29,153 million (US$280 million). Notes and accounts receivable increased

¥17,254 million, to ¥173,563 million (US$1,666 million), due partly to the

consolidation of Showa Denko HD Trace. Inventories rose ¥7,815 mil-

lion, to ¥68,736 million (US$660 million), as the effect of the consolida-

tion of Showa Denko HD Trace and the rise in raw material costs more

than offset inventory reduction efforts. Tangible fixed assets fell ¥19,784

million, to ¥518,371 million (US$4,974 million), due mainly to the imple-

mentation of the accounting standard for the impairment of fixed assets

and sale/disposal of assets. Total investments and other assets decreased

¥5,133 million, to ¥122,954 million (US$1,180 million). This was

because a ¥9,037 million decrease in deferred tax assets—non-current

more than offset a ¥6,719 million increase in investment securities that

resulted from a rise in the appraised value at the year-end.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liabilities

Interest-bearing debt fell ¥24,956 million from the end of the previous

year, to ¥502,433 million (US$4,821 million), as a result of continued

debt reduction efforts. Total liabilities decreased ¥11,437 million, to

¥721,060 million (US$6,919 million).

Stockholders’ Equity

Total stockholders’ equity increased ¥11,613 million, to ¥177,701 million

(US$1,705 million). This reflected increases in retained earnings and

securities valuation surplus as well as an increase in capital surplus fol-

lowing the share exchange arrangement that made Heisei Polymer, a

wholly owned subsidiary.  

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures amounted to ¥29,916 million (US$287 million), cen-

tering on electronics. Chief items were an expansion of the supply

capacities of HD media, blue LEDs, and solid conductive polymer alu-

minum surface-mount capacitors. In addition, we invested in the expan-

sion of other production facilities as well as rationalization, production

maintenance, and environmental protection.

Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased ¥4,033 million, to

¥59,528 million (US$571 million), as increases in working capital due

to the rise in raw material costs more than offset a considerable increase

in operating income. Net cash used in investing activities decreased

¥12,687 million, to ¥12,412 million (US$119 million), primarily due to a

decrease in capital expenditures. As a result, free cash flow increased

¥8,654 million, to ¥47,116 million (US$452 million). Net cash used in

financing activities increased ¥9,223 million, to ¥45,123 million (US$433

million), mainly due to a reduction in interest-bearing debt. As a result,

cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2004 increased ¥2,668 million,

to ¥29,153 million (US$280 million).

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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CCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

ASSETS 2004 2003 2004

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 5)............................................................................... ¥0,029,153 ¥0,026,485 $00,279,751
Marketable securities (Notes 2 and 6)........................................................................................ 2 3 22
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 7) ................................................................................... 173,563 156,309 1,665,515
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Note 2) ............................................................................... (2,497) (1,254) (23,965)
Inventories (Note 2) ................................................................................................................... 68,736 60,921 659,596
Deferred tax assets—current (Note 10)...................................................................................... 7,665 6,718 73,549
Prepaid expenses and other current assets............................................................................... 11,284 13,119 108,283

Total current assets....................................................................................................... 287,906 262,301 2,762,751

Property, plant and equipment (Note 2)
Land ......................................................................................................................................... 276,438 291,469 2,652,697
Buildings and structures............................................................................................................ 224,869 216,592 2,157,849
Machinery and equipment ......................................................................................................... 617,018 608,672 5,920,909
Construction in progress ........................................................................................................... 10,485 6,535 100,613

..................................................................................................................................................... 1,128,810 1,123,268 10,832,068
Less: Accumulated depreciation................................................................................................ (610,439) (585,114) (5,857,779)

Net property, plant and equipment................................................................................ 518,371 538,154 4,974,289

Investments and other assets
Investment securities (Notes 2 and 6) ........................................................................................ 90,094 83,375 864,547
Long-term loans ....................................................................................................................... 1,697 2,602 16,282
Deferred tax assets—non-current (Note 10) .............................................................................. 7,631 16,668 73,230
Other......................................................................................................................................... 26,333 28,382 252,696
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 2) .................................................................................. (2,802) (2,939) (26,889)

Total investments and other assets ............................................................................... 122,954 128,087 1,179,867

Excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired ................................................................. 14,677 11,336 140,837

Total assets................................................................................................................... ¥0,943,908 ¥0,939,879 $09,057,744

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
At December 31, 2004 and 2003
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 2004 2003 2004

Current liabilities
Short-term debt (Note 8)................................................................................................................. ¥100,471 ¥117,729 $0,964,119
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) ...................................................................................... 133,698 73,830 1,282,963
Notes and accounts payable (Note 7) ............................................................................................. 131,158 119,246 1,258,592
Accrued liabilities

Income taxes.............................................................................................................................. 2,014 2,240 19,325
Other .......................................................................................................................................... 5,609 4,325 53,822

Reserve for restructuring expenses (Note 2).................................................................................... 5,569 4,214 53,440
Reserve for periodic repairs (Notes 2 and 3) ................................................................................... 106 — 1,016
Other current liabilities .................................................................................................................... 23,485 21,432 225,366

Total current liabilities ......................................................................................................... 402,109 343,016 3,858,644

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt less current portion (Note 8) .................................................................................. 268,264 335,829 2,574,265
Deferred tax liabilities—non-current (Note 10) ................................................................................. 6,224 6,353 59,728
Accrued pension and severance costs (Notes 2 and 9)................................................................... 8,879 8,640 85,206
Reserve for directors’ retirement allowance (Notes 2 and 3)............................................................ 1,332 869 12,781
Reserve for periodic repairs (Notes 2 and 3) ................................................................................... 924 — 8,867
Deferred tax liabilities due to land revaluation.................................................................................. 22,864 23,929 219,401
Other long-term liabilities ................................................................................................................ 10,463 13,861 100,406

Total long-term liabilities ..................................................................................................... 318,951 389,481 3,060,654

Minority interests............................................................................................................................. 45,147 41,295 433,229

Contingent liabilities (Note 12)

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock

Authorized, 3,300,000,000 shares
Issued, 2004—1,142,832,934 shares......................................................................................... 110,451 — 1,059,893
Issued, 2003—1,138,100,738 shares......................................................................................... — 110,451 —

Capital surplus................................................................................................................................ 11,089 8,175 106,413
Retained earnings........................................................................................................................... 18,316 13,271 175,756
Revaluation reserve (Note 13) ......................................................................................................... 33,280 34,832 319,352
Securities valuation surplus............................................................................................................. 7,842 2,501 75,248
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2)........................................................................... (3,213) (3,096) (30,833)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 2004—255,396 shares ..................................................................... (64) — (611)
Less: Treasury stock at cost, 2003—176,762 shares ..................................................................... — (47) —

Total stockholders’ equity................................................................................................... 177,701 166,087 1,705,217

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .............................................................................. ¥943,908 ¥939,879 $9,057,744
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

2004 2003 2004

Net sales............................................................................................................................................ ¥740,706 ¥689,366 $7,107,825
Cost of sales ..................................................................................................................................... 604,818 563,828 5,803,841

Gross profit ..................................................................................................................................... 135,888 125,538 1,303,983
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 14) ................................................................ 83,817 86,991 804,310

Operating income............................................................................................................................ 52,071 38,546 499,674

Other income (expenses)
Interest and dividend income........................................................................................................... 1,241 1,025 11,906
Gain on the sale of marketable and investment securities, net ......................................................... 2,280 1,915 21,883
Subsidy for waste plastic recycle plant ............................................................................................ — 3,737 —
Interest expense .............................................................................................................................. (9,890) (10,507) (94,904)
Loss on the sale of property, plant and equipment, net ................................................................... (428) (1,581) (4,112)
Loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment, net............................................................. (3,910) (2,218) (37,516)
Impairment of fixed assets (Note 3).................................................................................................. (11,807) — (113,297)
Loss on valuation of investment securities ....................................................................................... (429) (270) (4,118)
Special severance pay..................................................................................................................... (1,265) (2,585) (12,135)
Reserve for restructuring expenses (Note 2) .................................................................................... (2,571) (2,968) (24,671)
Prior-period expenses for periodic repairs (Notes 2 and 3)............................................................... (895) — (8,585)
Reserve for directors’ retirement allowance (Notes 2 and 3)............................................................. (374) — (3,589)
Other, net ........................................................................................................................................ (5,187) (6,325) (49,770)

Total .................................................................................................................................... (33,233) (19,777) (318,908)

Income before income taxes........................................................................................................... 18,838 18,769 180,766
Income taxes (Notes 2 and 10)

Current ............................................................................................................................................ 4,090 3,326 39,245
Deferred .......................................................................................................................................... 5,300 5,329 50,863

Minority interests ............................................................................................................................. 1,852 (203) 17,771

Net income.......................................................................................................................... ¥007,596 ¥010,317 $0,072,887

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 4)

Per share amounts
Net income (Note 16) ...................................................................................................................... ¥6.66 ¥9.07 $0.064
Cash dividends (applicable to the period)......................................................................................... 3.00 2.00 0.029

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
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Thousands Millions of yen
Foreign

Number of Securities currency
shares of Common Capital Retained Revaluation valuation translation Treasury

common stock stock surplus earnings reserve surplus adjustments stock

Balance at December 31, 2002 ....................................... 1,138,101 ¥110,451 ¥08,174 ¥ 1,302 ¥34,080 ¥(2,442) ¥ (1,402) ¥(43)

Net income for the year ................................................... — — — 10,317 — — — —
Increase due to exclusion from equity method................. — — — 3,180 — — — —
Increase due to change in fiscal year of some 
non-consolidated affiliates to which the equity 
method is applied.......................................................... — — — 24 — — — —

Reversal of revaluation reserve ........................................ — — — 11 — — — —
Decrease due to exclusion from equity method ............... — — — (1,555) — — — —
Directors’ and statutory auditors’ bonuses ...................... — — — (8) — — — —
Increase due to valuation of securities ............................ — — — — — 4,943 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2)............ — — — — — — (1,694) —
Increase in treasury stock ................................................ — — — — — — — (4)
Other............................................................................... — — 0 — 752 — — —

Balance at December 31, 2003 ....................................... 1,138,101 ¥110,451 ¥  8,175 ¥13,271 ¥34,832 ¥ 2,501 ¥ (3,096) ¥(47)

Increase resulting from stock exchange........................... 4,732 — 2,210 — — — — —
Increase resulting from merger with subsidiary................. — — 700 — — — — —
Net income for the year ................................................... — — — 7,596 — — — —
Increase due to exclusion from equity method................. — — — 86 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation ........................ — — — 5 — — — —
Reversal of revaluation reserve ........................................ — — — 1,552 — — — —
Cash dividends................................................................ — — — (2,276) — — — —
Decrease due to exclusion from equity method ............... — — — (96) — — — —
Decrease resulting from merger with subsidiaries ............ — — — (1,014) — — — —
Decrease due to inclusion in consolidation ...................... — — — (195) — — — —
Decrease in earned surplus accompanying increased
percentage ownership of a consolidated subsidiary....... — — — (614) — — — —

Increase due to valuation of securities ............................. — — — — — 5,340 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2)............ — — — — — — (117) —
Increase in treasury stock ................................................ — — — — — — — (17)
Other............................................................................... — — 5 — (1,552) — — —

Balance at December 31, 2004 ....................................... 1,142,833 ¥110,451 ¥11,089 ¥ 18,316 ¥33,280 ¥ 7,842 ¥ (3,213) ¥(64)

Thousands Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 4)

Balance at December 31, 2003 ....................................... 1,138,101 $1,059,893 $  78,446 $127,349 $334,247 $24,001 $(29,708) $(450)

Increase resulting from stock exchange .......................... 4,732 — 21,204 — — — — —
Increase resulting from merger with subsidiary ................ — — 6,717 — — — — —
Net income for the year................................................... — — — 72,887 — — — —
Increase due to exclusion from equity method ................ — — — 827 — — — —
Increase due to inclusion in consolidation........................ — — — 53 — — — —
Reversal of revaluation reserve ........................................ — — — 14,895 — — — —
Cash dividends ............................................................... — — — (21,840) — — — —
Decrease due to exclusion from equity method............... — — — (919) — — — —
Decrease resulting from merger with subsidiaries............ — — — (9,730) — — — —
Decrease due to inclusion in consolidation ...................... — — — (1,871) — — — —
Decrease in earned surplus accompanying increased
percentage ownership of a consolidated subsidiary ...... — — — (5,892) — — — —

Increase due to valuation of securities ............................. — — — — — 51,246 — —
Foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 2) ........... — — — — — — (1,123) —
Increase in treasury stock................................................ — — — — — — — (163)
Other .............................................................................. — — 45 — (14,893) — — —

Balance at December 31, 2004 ....................................... 1,142,833 $1,059,893 $106,413 $175,756 $319,352 $75,248 $(30,833) $(611)

See notes to financial statements.
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CCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 4)

2004 2003 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Income before income taxes ............................................................................................................ ¥18,838 ¥018,769 $180,766
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization...................................................................................................... 34,115 34,543 327,365
Impairment of fixed assets ........................................................................................................... 11,807 — 113,297
Amortization of excess of cost over equity in net assets acquired ................................................ 1,376 1,124 13,200
Interest and dividend income ....................................................................................................... (1,241) (1,025) (11,906)
Interest expense .......................................................................................................................... 9,890 10,507 94,904
Equity in earnings of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ................................................. (1,056) (1,614) (10,138)
Gain on sale and write-down of investment securities, net ........................................................... (1,916) (1,684) (18,383)
Loss on the disposal of property, plant and equipment, net ......................................................... 3,910 2,218 37,516
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment, net...................................................................... 428 1,581 4,112

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables ........................................................................................... (8,705) 8,017 (83,531)
(Increase) decrease in inventories..................................................................................................... (5,891) 8,785 (56,526)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables .............................................................................................. 6,942 (8,606) 66,614
Other ............................................................................................................................................... 3,729 3,265 35,784

Subtotal ....................................................................................................................................... 72,225 75,880 693,075
Interest and dividends received........................................................................................................ 1,607 1,441 15,419
Interest paid..................................................................................................................................... (10,006) (10,635) (96,021)
Income taxes paid............................................................................................................................ (4,298) (3,125) (41,240)

Net cash provided by operating activities ......................................................................... 59,528 63,561 571,233

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities................................................................................... 16 4 152
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment .............................................................. (30,576) (40,217) (293,409)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment .................................................................... 12,136 17,411 116,460
Payments for purchases of investment securities ............................................................................. (1,621) (9,389) (15,553)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities ................................................................................... 5,458 5,234 52,374
(Increase) decrease in short-term loans, net ..................................................................................... (480) 1,231 (4,605)
Payments for long-term loans .......................................................................................................... (165) (147) (1,584)
Proceeds from collection of long-term loans .................................................................................... 775 5,658 7,432
Other ............................................................................................................................................... 2,045 (4,884) 19,624

Net cash used in investing activities ................................................................................. (12,412) (25,099) (119,108)

Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in short-term debt, net ..................................................................................................... (29,767) (18,280) (285,649)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ...................................................................................... 43,774 142,450 420,059
Repayments of long-term debt ........................................................................................................ (76,257) (161,930) (731,766)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds.................................................................................................... 23,000 3,000 220,708
Redemption of bonds ...................................................................................................................... — (555) —
Payments of dividends..................................................................................................................... (2,276) — (21,840)
Payments of dividends to minority stockholders............................................................................... (2,628) (602) (25,216)
Other ............................................................................................................................................... (968) 17 (9,292)

Net cash used in financing activities ................................................................................. (45,123) (35,900) (432,996)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents................................................. (11) (361) (108)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents........................................................................................... 1,982 2,202 19,020
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year .................................................................... 26,485 23,260 254,153
Effect of adjustment of newly consolidated subsidiaries on cash 
and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ............................................................................ 686 1,023 6,579

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ............................................................................... ¥29,153 ¥026,485 $279,751

See notes to financial statements.

Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Showa Denko K.K. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF REPORTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in Japan and from the consolidated financial
statements which had been or will be filed with the Kanto Local Finance
Bureau as required by the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003 include the accounts of the Company and its 47
and 42 significant subsidiaries (collectively “the Companies”).

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements, all sig-
nificant intercompany transactions, account balances and unrealized
profits among the Companies are entirely eliminated and the portions
attributable to minority interests are credited or charged to income.

Accounts of subsidiaries whose business year-ends differ by more
than three months from December 31 have been included using
appropriate interim financial information.

The excess of cost over equity in net assets is amortized on a
straight-line basis within a period of 20 years.

(b) Investments in Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates 
The Company applies the equity method of accounting for invest-
ments in 4 non-consolidated subsidiaries and 22 affiliates for the year
ended December 31, 2004 and investments in 4 non-consolidated
subsidiaries and 29 affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2003.

All underlying intercompany profits obtained from transactions
among the Companies and non-consolidated subsidiaries and affili-
ates to which the equity method is applied are eliminated in the con-
solidated financial statements.

(c) Translation of Foreign Currency Accounts
All receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated into Japanese yen at the current
exchange rates.

The resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or charged
to income.

The monetary amounts stated in the financial statements of certain
consolidated subsidies of foreign nationality are translated into
Japanese yen at the year-end rate for assets and liabilities, at histori-
cal rates for other balance sheet accounts exclusive of net income,
and at the average annual rate for revenue and expense accounts
and net income.

Translation adjustments resulting from the process of translating
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries into Japanese yen are
accumulated and reported as a component of stockholders’ equity
on the consolidated balance sheet.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits available for
withdrawal on demand and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less and minor risk of value fluctuation.

(e) Securities
Debt securities that are intended to be held to maturity (“held-to-
maturity debt securities”) are measured at amortized cost in the bal-
ance sheet. Other securities with quoted market prices are stated
at their market prices prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Other securities without quoted market prices are stated at cost
by the moving-average method.

(f) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
To provide for losses from bad debts, the allowance is provided
according to the actual rate of non-recovery for ordinary claims and
in view of the probability of recovery for specific doubtful receivables.

(g) Inventories
Inventories are stated principally at cost as determined by the gross-
average method. Part of the inventories owned by certain sub-
sidiaries is stated at cost as determined by the specific identification
method or by the final purchasing-price method.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, in principle. With the
adoption of the fix asset impairment accounting standard from 2004,
however, aggregated amounts of impairment losses are deducted
directly from respective items. Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is computed principally by the straight-line method with
the exception that the declining-balance method is applied to certain
factories of the Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries.

(i) Intangible Assets
The Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries principally
apply the straight-line method to amortize intangible assets.

( j ) Reserve for Restructuring Expenses
The Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries record the
reserve for restructuring expenses on an accrual basis to provide
for expenses and losses resulting from their restructuring programs.

(k) Accrued Pension and Severance Costs
Accrued pension and severance costs are provided based on the
estimated retirement benefit obligation and the pension assets. The
figure is based on the amount of severance benefit obligations at
the balance sheet date and the estimated amount of the pension
fund. Transition amounts resulting from the initial adoption of the new
accounting method for employees’ retirement benefits are amortized
over 15 years, except for a certain consolidated subsidiary in which
the amount is amortized over 5 years.

Prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over certain
periods (mainly 12 years) within the average remaining service periods.

Unrecognized actuarial loss is amortized starting the year after
such actuarial loss is determined on a straight-line basis over certain
periods (mainly 12 years) within the average remaining service peri-
ods. However, a certain consolidated subsidiary recognized such
total actuarial loss as a one-time loss when determined.

NNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Reserve for Periodic Repairs
In order to make the calculation of period earnings more appropriate, from the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has created a reserve
for periodic repairs. Due to this change, operating income decreased by ¥135 million and income before income taxes decreased by ¥1,030 million
from the numbers calculated under the previous policy.

(b) Reserve for Directors’ Retirement Allowance
In order to make the calculation of period earnings more appropriate, the Company has created a reserve for directors’ retirement allowance from
the year ended December 31, 2004. Due to this change, operating income decreased by ¥114 million and income before income taxes decreased
by ¥488 million from the numbers calculated under the previous policy.

(c) Impairment of Fixed Assets
Although the adoption of the fixed asset impairment accounting standard will become mandatory effective from the year ending December 31,
2006, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have adopted it from the year ended December 31, 2004, two years prior to the required
deadline.  Due to this change, income before income taxes decreased by ¥11,807 million from the number calculated under the previous policy.

Loss on impairment of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2004 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Land............................................................................................................................................................................. ¥07,406 $071,066
Buildings ...................................................................................................................................................................... 2,444 23,455
Structures .................................................................................................................................................................... 1,551 14,883
Other............................................................................................................................................................................ 406 3,894

Total......................................................................................................................................................................... ¥11,807 $113,297

4. TRANSLATION INTO U.S. DOLLARS
The Companies’ accounting records are maintained in yen. The U.S. dollar amounts appearing in the accompanying financial statements and notes
thereto represent the arithmetical results of translating yen into U.S. dollars at the rate of ¥104.21 to US$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange at
December 31, 2004. The inclusion of such U.S. dollar amounts is solely for the convenience of readers; it does not carry with it any implication that
yen amounts have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars at that rate.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 on the consolidated balance sheets and cash equivalents at December 31, 2004 and 2003 on the consoli-
dated statements of cash flows are reconciled as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Cash ........................................................................................................................................................... ¥29,627 ¥26,791 $284,300
Original maturities of more than three months.............................................................................................. (474) (306) (4,549)

Cash and cash equivalents.......................................................................................................................... ¥29,153 ¥26,485 $279,751

(l) Reserve for Directors’ Retirement Allowance
The Company and some of the consolidated subsidiaries provide for
the retirement allowance for directors and statutory auditors in an
amount determined by those companies’ internal guidelines.

(m) Reserve for Periodic Repairs
The Company provides a reserve for periodic repairs in an amount
estimated by the maintenance schedule for production equipment.

(n) Income Taxes
Periodical allocation of corporate tax is being made, in principle,
regarding taxes pertaining to all temporary differences (differences
between the assets/liabilities on the consolidated financial state-
ments and the assets/liabilities in the calculation of taxable income).

(o) Leases
Finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the own-
ership of the leased assets to the lessees are principally accounted for
by the method that is applicable to ordinary operating leases.



6. SECURITIES
The tables that follow summarize acquisition costs and book values of marketable securities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

(a) Securities are judged to be “substantially declined” when their market values have declined 30% or more. When their market values have declined
50% or more, the impairment losses are recorded on those securities. When their market values have declined between 30% and 50%, the impair-
ment losses are recorded on those securities unless such values are considered to be recoverable individually. The following tables summarize book
values of marketable securities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Acquisition Book
costs value Difference

Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Equity securities .............................................................................................................................................. ¥21,375 ¥35,843 ¥14,468

Other securities
Equity securities .............................................................................................................................................. 7,515 7,013 (502)

Total ............................................................................................................................................................... ¥28,890 ¥42,856 ¥13,966

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Acquisition Book
costs value Difference

Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Equity securities .............................................................................................................................................. ¥12,044 ¥21,751 ¥9,707

Other securities
Equity securities .............................................................................................................................................. 19,564 14,411 (5,153)
Other .............................................................................................................................................................. 16 15 (1)

Total ............................................................................................................................................................... ¥31,624 ¥36,177 ¥4,553

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Acquisition Book
costs value Difference

Securities whose book value exceeds their acquisition cost
Equity securities............................................................................................................................................ $205,115 $343,950 $138,835

Other securities
Equity securities............................................................................................................................................ 72,114 67,297 (4,817)

Total ............................................................................................................................................................. $277,229 $411,247 $134,018

(b) The following tables summarize marketable securities sold in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ...................................................................................................................................................... ¥4,987 ¥2,253 ¥(176)

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ...................................................................................................................................................... ¥4,919 ¥1,000 ¥(27)

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Sale Gross gain Gross loss

Equity securities ................................................................................................................................................... $47,855 $21,620 $(1,689)
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(c) The following table summarizes book values of securities with no quoted market values as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Held-to-maturity debt securities
Local bonds ............................................................................................................................................ ¥00,021 ¥00,023 $000,202
Privately placed corporate bonds ............................................................................................................ 1,001 1,001 9,606

Available-for-sale securities
Non-listed equity securities...................................................................................................................... 23,323 23,142 223,808
Preferred securities.................................................................................................................................. 1,000 1,000 9,596
Privately placed local bonds .................................................................................................................... 115 115 1,104

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥25,460 ¥25,281 $244,314

(d) The following tables summarize marketable securities with maturities and held-to-maturity debt securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 
(all securities have a maturity of 10 years or less):
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Over 1 year but Over 5 years but
Within 1 year within 5 years within 10 years

Government bonds ...................................................................................................................... ¥2 ¥10 ¥0,009
Corporate bonds ......................................................................................................................... — — 1,000

Total ........................................................................................................................................ ¥2 ¥10 ¥1,009

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Over 1 year but Over 5 years but
Within 1 year within 5 years within 10 years

Government bonds ...................................................................................................................... ¥3 ¥10 ¥0,010
Corporate bonds ......................................................................................................................... — — 1,000

Total ........................................................................................................................................ ¥3 ¥10 ¥1,010

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Over 1 year but Over 5 years but
Within 1 year within 5 years within 10 years

Government bonds .................................................................................................................... $19 $96 $0,086
Corporate bonds........................................................................................................................ — — 9,596

Total....................................................................................................................................... $19 $96 $9,682

7. EFFECT OF YEAR-END DATE ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The year-end date of 2004, namely, December 31, 2004, was a bank holiday. Although notes receivable and payable on this date were accordingly
settled on January 4, 2005, the Companies accounted for those notes in their financial statements as if they had been settled on the earlier date.

Notes outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003 dealt with in the above-mentioned manner were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Notes receivable................................................................................................................................................... ¥1,392 ¥1,346 $13,358
Notes payable ...................................................................................................................................................... 2,370 2,350 22,743
Trade notes discounted by banks......................................................................................................................... 519 257 4,980
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8. SHORT-TERM DEBT AND LONG-TERM DEBT
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the short-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Bank loans, interest 0.44%–3.72%............................................................................................................ ¥100,146 ¥117,729 $961,002
Commercial paper..................................................................................................................................... 325 — 3,116

Total...................................................................................................................................................... ¥100,471 ¥117,729 $964,119

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the long-term debt of the Companies consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

2.3% bonds due 2005 .............................................................................................................................. ¥003,500 ¥003,500 $0,033,586
TIBOR+0.55% bonds due 2005 ................................................................................................................ 10,000 10,000 95,960
TIBOR+0.55% bonds due 2006 ................................................................................................................ 15,000 15,000 143,940
1.85% bonds due 2005 ............................................................................................................................ 2,000 2,000 19,192
1.9% bonds due 2007 .............................................................................................................................. 8,500 8,500 81,566
TIBOR+1.05% bonds due 2008 ................................................................................................................ 3,000 3,000 28,788
1.7% convertible bonds due 2005, convertible currently at ¥1,058............................................................ 28,884 28,884 277,171
0.7% convertible bonds due 2006, convertible currently at ¥720............................................................... 930 930 8,924
Zero coupon convertible bonds due 2009, convertible currently at ¥305................................................... 23,000 — 220,708
0.65%–4.9% loans, principally from banks and insurance companies, due 2005 to 2020 ......................... 307,148 337,846 2,947,392

................................................................................................................................................................ 401,962 409,660 3,857,228
Less: Current portion................................................................................................................................. (133,698) (73,830) (1,282,963)

................................................................................................................................................................. ¥268,264 ¥335,829 $2,574,265

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term debt and long-term debt:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Assets pledged as collateral
Investment securities............................................................................................................................. ¥007,453 ¥006,600 $0,071,519
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation ............................................................. 230,036 250,018 2,207,427

Total.................................................................................................................................................. 237,489 ¥256,618 $2,278,946

Secured short-term debt and long-term debt
Short-term debt .................................................................................................................................... ¥ — ¥000,669 $             —
Long-term debt ..................................................................................................................................... 74,203 96,138 712,053
Other debt............................................................................................................................................. 2,180 2,567 20,919

Total.................................................................................................................................................. ¥076,383 ¥099,374 $0,732,972

The aggregate annual maturities of the non-current portion of long-term debt are as follows:
Years ending December 31 Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2006 ............................................................................................................................................................................ ¥090,805 $0,871,366
2007 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 73,636 706,612
2008 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 31,181 299,213
2009 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 10,744 103,100
2010 and thereafter...................................................................................................................................................... 11,468 110,047

.................................................................................................................................................................................... ¥217,834 $2,090,337



9. PENSION AND SEVERANCE PLANS
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries had a funded qualified retirement pension plan, a funded welfare pension plan and unfunded benefit
plans on a lump-sum payment basis, all of which were for all employees as their defined benefit system. However, the Company and some of the
consolidated subsidiaries terminated such plans at the end of 2003.

Since the beginning of 2004, they have adopted a new defined benefit plan as well as a defined contribution plan. The rest of the consolidated
subsidiaries still have a funded qualified retirement plan or unfunded benefit plans on a lump-sum basis as their defined benefit system.

(a) The plans’ funded status and amount recognized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as
follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Benefit obligation at the end of year ..................................................................................................... ¥(117,187) ¥(117,421) $(1,124,529)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year ........................................................................................... 55,591 51,109 533,454

Funded status ...................................................................................................................................... (61,596) (66,311) (591,076)
Unrecognized transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting ..................................... 36,270 39,455 348,046
Unrecognized actuarial loss.................................................................................................................. 25,158 28,784 241,414
Unrecognized prior service costs ......................................................................................................... (8,574) (9,353) (82,280)

Net amount recognized........................................................................................................................ (8,743) (7,424) (83,895)
Prepaid pension expense ..................................................................................................................... 137 1,215 1,310

Accrued pension and severance costs............................................................................................. ¥00(8,879) ¥00(8,640) $0,0(85,205)

The components of net pension and severance costs for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Service cost ................................................................................................................................................... ¥2,875 ¥03,344 $27,588
Interest cost ................................................................................................................................................... 2,959 3,485 28,396
Expected return on planned assets ................................................................................................................ (1,424) (1,438) (13,667)
Amortization of transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting.............................................. 3,486 3,495 33,447
Recognized actuarial loss............................................................................................................................... 2,771 2,191 26,593
Amortization of prior service cost ................................................................................................................... (774) — (7,423)

Net periodic cost........................................................................................................................................ 9,893 11,079 94,935

Cost for defined contribution plan .................................................................................................................. 79 — 757

Total........................................................................................................................................................... ¥9,972 ¥11,079 $95,693

The assumptions and basis as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2001 2004 2003

Discount rate ............................................................................................................................................... Mainly 2.5% Mainly 2.5%
Expected return rate on planned assets....................................................................................................... Mainly 3.0% Mainly 3.5%
Amortization period for actuarial loss ........................................................................................................... Mainly 12 years Mainly 12 years
Amortization period for unrecognized transition amount under post-employment benefits accounting ......... Mainly 15 years Mainly 15 years
Amortization period for prior service cost ..................................................................................................... Mainly 12 years —
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10. INCOME TAXES
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Deferred tax assets
Tax loss carryforwards............................................................................................................................. ¥14,271 ¥23,445 $136,941
Write-down of marketable and investment securities ............................................................................... 7,659 5,522 73,499
Reserve for restructuring expenses.......................................................................................................... 2,662 1,686 25,543
Unrealized earnings from the sale of fixed assets ..................................................................................... 1,397 1,642 13,406
Accrued pension and severance costs .................................................................................................... 3,308 2,786 31,742
Reserve for bonus payment..................................................................................................................... 837 717 8,031
Reserve for directors’ retirement allowance ............................................................................................. 538 352 5,164
Impairment of fixed assets ....................................................................................................................... 3,876 — 37,197
Reserve for periodic repairs ..................................................................................................................... 419 — 4,023
Non-deductible expenses:

Allowance for doubtful accounts.......................................................................................................... 1,427 1,087 13,692
Depreciation ........................................................................................................................................ 484 610 4,644

Other....................................................................................................................................................... 2,098 1,582 20,135
Subtotal of deferred tax assets ................................................................................................................ 38,976 39,429 374,015
Valuation allowance ................................................................................................................................. (15,157) (9,729) (145,444)

Total deferred tax assets ..................................................................................................................... 23,819 29,701 228,571

Deferred tax liabilities
Amount of revaluation from the book value.............................................................................................. (5,022) (7,056) (48,191)
Special depreciation reserve.................................................................................................................... (1,778) (1,794) (17,059)
Securities valuation surplus...................................................................................................................... (5,603) (1,738) (53,770)
Other....................................................................................................................................................... (2,345) (2,083) (22,500)

Total deferred tax liabilities................................................................................................................... (14,748) (12,670) (141,520)

Net deferred tax assets ............................................................................................................................... ¥09,072 ¥17,030 $087,051

(b) The net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are included in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Deferred tax assets—current........................................................................................................................... ¥7,665 ¥06,718 $73,549
Deferred tax assets—non-current ................................................................................................................... 7,631 16,668 73,230
Other current liabilities..................................................................................................................................... — (3) —
Deferred tax liabilities—non-current................................................................................................................. (6,224) (6,353) (59,728)

11. INFORMATION FOR CERTAIN LEASES
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, assets leased under non-capitalized financial leases were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Machinery and equipment ........................................................................................................................... ¥24,034 ¥14,717 $230,630
Other........................................................................................................................................................... 1,611 1,839 15,459
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ....................................................................................... 9,608 8,353 92,198

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥16,037 ¥08,202 $153,891



At December 31, 2004 and 2003, future minimum lease payments for the remaining lease periods were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Due within one year ..................................................................................................................................... ¥02,969 ¥2,027 $028,491
Due over one year ....................................................................................................................................... 13,068 6,175 125,401

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥16,037 ¥8,202 $153,891

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, paid lease fees and equivalent depreciation expense amounts were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Paid lease fees.................................................................................................................................................. ¥2,913 ¥2,388 $27,953
Equivalent depreciation expense amounts ........................................................................................................ 2,913 2,388 27,953
Note: Equivalent depreciation expense amounts are calculated using the straight-line method, with the lease period as the useful life and zero (0) as the residual value.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, assets leased under non-capitalized operating leases were as follows:

Future minimum lease payments for the remaining lease periods:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Due within one year .......................................................................................................................................... ¥1,687 ¥1,732 $16,188
Due over one year............................................................................................................................................. 2,067 3,842 19,835

Total ............................................................................................................................................................. ¥3,754 ¥5,574 $36,023

12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At December 31, 2004, the Companies were contingently liable for outstanding trade notes discounted by banks in the ordinary course of business
in an aggregate amount of ¥659 million (US$6,324 thousand).

They were also guarantors for the borrowing below. The guarantees were principally for non-consolidated subsidiaries, affiliates and others.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Guarantee ................................................................................................................................................... ¥16,454 ¥19,816 $157,893

As the amounts include joint and several guarantors’ portions as well as the Companies’, actual amounts we were contingently liable to pay were
smaller than the above.

13. REVALUATION RESERVE
The Company and some of its consolidated subsidiaries revalued the land they own for business in accordance with the Law Concerning Revaluation
of Land. The difference between the revalued amount and the book value, after the deduction of applicable tax, is stated as revaluation reserve. The
revaluation was conducted using methods stipulated in the ordinance for enforcement of the law, specifically, the method in Item 4 of Article 2
(Reasonable Adjustment of the Appraised Value Relating to Land Price Tax), and the method in Item 5 of Article 2 (Estimation by Experts). The differ-
ence between the market value and the book value on the revaluated land as of December 31, 2004 was ¥45,531 million (US$436,916 thousand).

14. SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were summarized as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Freight ......................................................................................................................................................... ¥17,863 ¥22,150 $171,411
Employees’ compensation .......................................................................................................................... 19,094 19,052 183,229
Sales commission ....................................................................................................................................... 5,651 7,361 54,226
Other........................................................................................................................................................... 41,209 38,428 395,444

Total ........................................................................................................................................................ ¥83,817 ¥86,991 $804,310
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Research and development expenses included in this summary for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were ¥16,559 million
(US$158,900 thousand) and ¥15,637 million, respectively.

15. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and development costs included in the cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 were ¥17,576 million (US$168,659 thousand) and ¥16,983 million, respectively.

16. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Basic income per share and diluted income per share for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

Yen U.S. dollars

2004 2003 2004

Basic .................................................................................................................................................................. ¥6.66 ¥9.07 $0.064
Diluted ................................................................................................................................................................ 6.35 — 0.061

Net income per share has been computed based on the average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the respective fiscal
year. Fully diluted net income per share additionally assumes the conversion of the convertible bonds.

17. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company and certain subsidiaries enter into forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity forwards for aluminum metal. The
Company and its subsidiaries have a basic policy of using derivative financial instruments for risk hedging within the limit of hedged receivables and
payables and do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Forward exchange contracts are used to hedge risk arising
from future fluctuations of foreign currency exchange with respect to receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies. 

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge risk arising from future fluctuations of interest rates and reduce interest expenses. Commodity forwards for
aluminum metal are used to hedge risk arising from future fluctuations of commodity market prices with respect to commodity transactions. 

Under the Japanese Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments, which have been effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2000,
the Companies have applied hedge accounting. 

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the derivative financial instruments of the Companies were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2004 2004

Contract Valuation Valuation
amount Fair value gain (loss) gain (loss)

Related to interest rates
Interest rate swaps:

Paying fixed rates and receiving floating rates........................................................................ ¥500 ¥(15) ¥(15) $(144)

Millions of yen

2003

Contract Valuation
amount Fair value gain (loss)

Related to interest rates
Interest rate swaps:

Paying fixed rates and receiving floating rates ...................................................................... ¥2,387 ¥(40) ¥(40)



18. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized by business segment as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................ ¥254,351 ¥080,188 ¥112,455 ¥055,295 ¥238,419 ¥        — ¥740,706
Inter-segment ........................................................ 2,021 687 425 249 18,785 (22,167) —

Total .................................................................. 256,372 80,875 112,880 55,543 257,204 (22,167) 740,706
Operating costs ..................................................... 236,240 76,029 97,961 49,444 244,883 (15,922) 688,635

Operating income .................................................. ¥020,132 ¥004,845 ¥014,919 ¥006,099 ¥012,321 ¥  (6,245) ¥052,071

Assets ....................................................................... ¥229,221 ¥145,931 ¥108,471 ¥111,038 ¥347,211 ¥02,036 ¥943,908
Depreciation and amortization ................................... 5,950 5,539 8,198 2,681 11,963 (216) 34,115
Capital expenditures .................................................. 3,837 3,817 11,668 2,142 8,541 (89) 29,916

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ................................................ ¥235,124 ¥078,232 ¥94,735 ¥050,969 ¥230,306 ¥        — ¥689,366
Inter-segment ........................................................ 1,506 780 432 137 17,506 (20,360) —

Total .................................................................. 236,630 79,011 95,167 51,106 247,812 (20,360) 689,366
Operating costs ..................................................... 224,659 73,022 84,467 48,452 236,165 (15,945) 650,820

Operating income .................................................. ¥011,971 ¥005,989 ¥10,700 ¥002,654 ¥011,647 ¥  (4,415) ¥038,546

Assets ....................................................................... ¥225,387 ¥154,415 ¥84,624 ¥110,436 ¥361,702 ¥03,315 ¥939,879
Depreciation and amortization ................................... 7,151 5,175 6,162 2,797 13,692 (434) 34,543
Capital expenditures .................................................. 5,959 13,208 9,795 2,207 9,823 (144) 40,848

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Inorganic
Petrochemicals Chemicals Electronics Materials Aluminum Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers..................................... $2,440,751 $0,769,482 $1,079,117 $0,530,606 $2,287,869 $          — $7,107,825
Inter-segment............................................. 19,397 6,592 4,078 2,387 180,261 (212,715) —

Total....................................................... 2,460,148 776,073 1,083,195 532,994 2,468,130 (212,715) 7,107,825
Operating costs ......................................... 2,266,963 729,577 940,035 474,470 2,349,898 (152,792) 6,608,151

Operating income....................................... $0,193,185 $0,046,497 $0,143,161 $00,58,524 $0,118,231 $ (59,923) $0,499,674

Assets............................................................ $2,199,607 $1,400,353 $1,040,884 $1,065,522 $3,331,840 $019,539 $9,057,744
Depreciation and amortization........................ 57,096 53,152 78,668 25,727 114,797 (2,075) 327,365
Capital expenditures ...................................... 36,820 36,628 111,966 20,555 81,960 (854) 287,074
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(b) The operations of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized by geographic area as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥663,311 ¥77,395 ¥        — ¥740,706
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 27,740 6,242 (33,982) —

Total................................................................................................................. 691,051 83,637 (33,982) 740,706
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 630,284 78,107 (19,755) 688,635

Operating income................................................................................................. ¥060,767 ¥05,531 ¥(14,227) ¥052,071

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥879,446 ¥80,440 ¥(15,978) ¥943,908

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................... ¥619,320 ¥70,046 ¥       — ¥689,366
Inter-segment....................................................................................................... 18,637 3,349 (21,986) —

Total................................................................................................................. 637,957 73,394 (21,986) 689,366
Operating costs.................................................................................................... 597,918 70,160 (17,258) 650,820

Operating income................................................................................................. ¥040,040 ¥03,234 ¥ (4,727) ¥038,546

Assets ...................................................................................................................... ¥877,921 ¥48,013 ¥13,945 ¥939,879

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Domestic companies Overseas companies Elimination Consolidated

Sales
Outside customers ............................................................................................ $6,365,138 $742,687 $          — $7,107,825
Inter-segment.................................................................................................... 266,193 59,899 (326,092) —

Total.............................................................................................................. 6,631,331 802,586 (326,092) 7,107,825
Operating costs................................................................................................. 6,048,207 749,512 (189,568) 6,608,151

Operating income.............................................................................................. $0,583,124 $053,074 $(136,524) $0,499,674

Assets................................................................................................................... $8,439,167 $771,902 $(153,325) $9,057,744

Overseas sales, which represent sales to customers outside of Japan, of the Companies for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were
summarized by geographic area as follows:
Year ended December 31, 2004 Millions of yen

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales.......................................................................................................................................... ¥143,908 ¥50,362 ¥194,270
Consolidated net sales .............................................................................................................................. — — 740,706
Ratio of overseas sales to consolidated net sales ...................................................................................... 19.4% 6.8% 26.2%

Year ended December 31, 2003 Millions of yen

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales.......................................................................................................................................... ¥114,943 ¥52,191 ¥167,134
Consolidated net sales .............................................................................................................................. — — 689,366
Ratio of overseas sales to consolidated net sales ...................................................................................... 16.7% 7.6% 24.2%

Year ended December 31, 2004 Thousands of U.S. dollars

Asia Others Overseas sales

Overseas sales....................................................................................................................................... $1,380,942 $483,274 $1,864,216



19. RISK FACTORS

Operational and Other Risks
Showa Denko K.K. and its Group companies are taking steps to minimize risks to the Group’s operations. While implementing its three-year 
(2003-2005) consolidated business plan, the “Sprout Project,” the SDK Group faces the following risks, which could adversely affect its future
performance and financial conditions. This list covers important risk factors in existence as of March 30, 2005 and is not inclusive.

(1) Substantial Fluctuations in the Performances of Individual Businesses
The SDK Group manufactures and sells a wide variety of products, such as petrochemicals, chemicals, electronics, inorganic materials and 
aluminum. The following risks are expected in but not limited to the businesses mentioned below.

Petrochemicals
The SDK Group purchases and imports a large amount of feedstock naphtha. When the naphtha price rises due to an increase in crude oil prices,
tight supply or a weaker yen, and when we cannot absorb the manufacturing cost increase in the form of higher product prices, the Group’s
performance and financial conditions can be affected. Furthermore, earnings from petrochemicals largely depend on the supply-demand balance.
Construction of large plants by competitors and resultant oversupply as well as a sharp decrease in demand due to unfavorable changes in the
Japanese or world economies can affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Aluminum
The Group imports aluminum ingot from overseas sources. When the aluminum ingot price rises due to fluctuations in LME prices or a weaker
yen, and when we cannot absorb the manufacturing cost increase in the form of higher product prices, the Group’s performance and financial
conditions can be affected. Furthermore, in some of the product lines, sales to specific customers account for a large portion. Those customers’
performances, which are beyond our control, can substantially affect such businesses.

HDs
In the Group’s HD business, the sales volume is largely influenced by demand for electric appliances and PCs, and the business requires innova-
tions at a rapid pace and involves fierce international competition. The Group is prepared to develop and provide products meeting the market
needs. However, when customer needs change more quickly than anticipated, and when the supply-demand balance changes substantially, the
Group’s performance and financial conditions can be affected.

Overseas operations
The Group is producing and selling in Asia, North America and Europe. Operations overseas involve such special risks as unexpected changes 
in laws and regulations, deterioration in political/economic situations and social disorder due to war and terrorism. Such risks can become real 
and affect our overseas operations, resulting in adverse impact on the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

(2) Unexpected Fluctuations in Financial Conditions and Cash Flows
Substantial fluctuations in exchange rates
The Group imports part of its feedstock requirements from overseas and exports part of its domestic production to foreign countries. The Group makes
its best efforts to minimize relevant exchange rate fluctuation risks, mainly through exchange contracts. However, substantial fluctuations in exchange
rates can affect the Group’s foreign-currency-based transactions and assets/liabilities, affecting the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Exchange rate fluctuations can similarly affect the Group’s overseas subsidiaries. Furthermore, the exchange rate fluctuations can affect the
Group’s performance and financial conditions through conversion of overseas subsidiaries’ financial statements into Japanese yen.

Trends in financial markets
The Group has been making continuous efforts to reduce its interest-bearing debt, resulting in a substantial decline in the ratio of interest-bearing
debt to shareholders’ equity.  However, the trends in the financial markets can change the fund-raising and interest-rate situations, affecting the
Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Accrued pension and severance costs
The Group’s accrued pension and severance costs and expenses are calculated based on various basic rates and the yield of pension assets used
in pension calculations. Fluctuations in the current price of pension assets, trends in interest rates and changes in the retirement benefit/pension 
systems can affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Securities
As the Group owns securities with current prices, fluctuations in stock prices can result in valuation losses, affecting the Group’s performance and
financial conditions.
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Accounting for impairment of fixed assets
The Group adopted the accounting standard regarding impairment of fixed assets in 2004, earlier than legally required. The Group may incur 
additional losses from impairment of fixed assets as a result of future changes in the current prices of land and other fixed assets or a substantial
change in the business environment.

Deferred tax assets
The Group’s financial statements include deferred tax assets in relation to temporary differences (differences between the assets/liabilities on the
consolidated financial statements and the assets/liabilities in calculation of taxable income). The calculation of deferred tax assets is based on vari-
ous projections for future taxable income. Thus, when actual results differ from the projections and when it becomes necessary to revise deferred
tax assets, it can affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

(3) Specific Regulations
The Group’s businesses are subject to various restrictions as stipulated by laws and regulations. The restrictions relate to industrial safety (such as
the Law for Prevention of Disasters at Petroleum Complexes, Etc.; the Fire Service Law; and the High Pressure Gas Safety Law) and the environ-
ment and chemical substances (such as the Basic Environment Law; the Air Pollution Control Law; and the Law concerning the Examination and
Regulation of the Manufacture, Etc., of Chemical Substances). The Group observes these laws and regulations as it conducts its respective busi-
nesses. In the event the Group fails to observe any of the laws and regulations, the Group’s activities could be restricted. If stricter regulations are
introduced and result in higher costs, the Group’s performance and financial conditions could be affected.

(4) Important Lawsuits
While the Group makes best efforts to observe pertinent laws and regulations, the Group may be sued as it conducts its wide-ranging businesses.

(5) Others
R&D
In line with its policy of securing market orientation and establishing technical advantages, the Group is engaged in continuous R&D to improve its
core technologies in inorganic/aluminum and organic chemical technologies and achieve synergies in an effort to create individualized products and
high-value businesses. However, if the actual results materially differ from original plans, the Group’s performance and financial conditions could be
affected.

Intellectual property
The Group is making best efforts to protect its accumulated patent rights and know-how in recognition of their ability to make the Group’s busi-
nesses more competitive. However, in the event of failure to duly protect any of the patent rights or know-how or infringement by a third party, or 
if the Group is considered to have infringed on a third party’s patent rights, the Group’s performance and financial conditions could be affected.

Product quality and product liability
The Group has established its internal rules on quality assurance and quality control, as well as organizations for managing and promoting quality
assurance. Furthermore, the Group has obtained certification under ISO 9001 standards to ensure strict quality control. However, in the event of a
serious quality defect or being sued for product liability, the Group’s reputation could be damaged and the Group may be forced to pay compensa-
tion to customers. This could affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Accidents and disasters
The Group is committed to securing steady and safe operations. The Group conducts regular inspections of all manufacturing facilities in an effort
to minimize any risk factors pertaining to suspension of operations or accidents due to troubles with manufacturing facilities. In the event of injury or
damage to property due to an accident or a natural disaster, the Group’s reputation could be damaged and the Group could incur substantial costs
and lose business opportunities due to suspension of production. This could affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.

Impact on environment
The Group is committed to the principles of Responsible Care, which means that we are working to ensure the health and safety of everyone and to
protect the environment from harm caused by chemical substances throughout their life cycles, namely, the development, production, distribution,
use and disposal of these substances. In the event of causing impact on the environment, the Group’s reputation could be damaged. The Group
may incur significant costs, including compensation, lose business opportunities due to suspension of production and pay compensation to cus-
tomers. These factors could affect the Group’s performance and financial conditions.
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Name Equity Participation (%) (Note 1) Main Product(s) or Business(es)

Baotou Showa Rare Earth Hi-Tech 
New Material Co., Ltd. 60.0 Rare earth magnetic alloy

Heisei Polymer Co., Ltd. 100.0 Plastic cloth, bags, sheeting, etc.
Hymold Co., Ltd. 100.0 Plastic products for electrical appliances
PT. Showa Aluminum Indonesia 90.0 Evaporators for refrigerators
PT. Showa Esterindo Indonesia 67.0 Ethyl acetate
SDS Biotech K.K. (Note 2) 100.0 Agrochemicals
Shoko Co., Ltd.* (T8090) 43.9 General trading
Shotic America Corporation (Note 3) 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Shotic Europa-Industria de Aluminio Lda. 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Shotic (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 100.0 Aluminum forged products
Showa Aluminum Alloy K.K. 100.0 Aluminum alloy
Showa Aluminum Can Corporation 75.0 Beer and soft drink cans
Showa Aluminum Corporation of America (Note 3) 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles, aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers
Showa Aluminum Czech S.R.O. 100.0 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles
Showa Aluminum Manufacturing 
Philippines Corporation 100.0 Evaporators for refrigerators

Showa Aluminum Powder K.K. 100.0 Aluminum paste
Showa Aluminum (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 97.5 Heat exchange equipment for automobiles
Showa Aluminum Viewtech Co., Ltd. 100.0 Flagstaffs, lightning rods, home exterior products, etc.
Showa Denko Aluminum Trading K.K. 100.0 Aluminum products trading in western Japan
Showa Denko Carbon, Inc. 100.0 Graphite electrodes
Showa Denko (Dalian) Co., Ltd. 100.0 Aluminum cylinders for laser beam printers
Showa Denko HD K.K. 80.1 Hard disks
Showa Denko HD Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 100.0 Aluminum substrates for hard disks
Showa Denko HD Singapore Pte. Ltd. 100.0 Hard disks
Showa Denko HD Trace Corporation 66.7 Hard disks, aluminum substrates for hard disks
Showa Denko Kenzai K.K. 100.0 Plaster materials, fireproofing pipe, wall siding, etc.
Showa Denko Packaging Co., Ltd. 100.0 Packaging/containers for food, medicine, and electronic parts
Showa Denko Plastic Products Co., Ltd. 100.0 Packaging, plastic parts for OA equipment, etc.
Showa Engineering Co., Ltd. 100.0 Engineering, construction, maintenance
Showa Financing K.K. 100.0 Provision of finance to subsidiaries and affiliates
Showa Highpolymer Co., Ltd.* (T4214) 40.6 Unsaturated polyester, vinyl ester, etc.
Showa Specialty Gas (Taiwan) Co., Ltd. 50.8 Specialty gas marketing

SUBSIDIARIES

Name Equity Participation (%) Main Product(s) or Business(es)

Japan Polyethylene Corporation 42.0 High- and low-density polyethylene
Showa Cabot K.K. 50.0 Carbon black
Showa Tansan Co., Ltd.* (T4096) 20.8 Liquid carbon dioxide, dry ice
Sun Allomer Co., Ltd. 50.0 Polypropylene and advanced polypropylene-based materials
Tokyo Liquefied Oxygen Co., Ltd. 35.0 Liquefied oxygen, nitrogen, argon
Union Showa K.K. 50.0 Molecular sieves

AFFILIATES

*Tokyo Stock Exchange listed companies

As of December 31, 2004, Showa Denko K.K. had 26 subsidiaries or affiliates to which the equity method was applied.

* Tokyo Stock Exchange listed companies

As of December 31, 2004, Showa Denko K.K. had 47 consolidated subsidiaries, including the above.

Notes: 1. Proportion of ownership interest (direct or indirect) by SDK and its subsidiaries
2. In March 2005, Showa Denko K.K. sold all of its shares in SDS Biotech K.K.
3. In January 2005, Showa Aluminum Corporation of America absorbed Shotic America Corporation.

MMAJOR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES (As of December 31, 2004)
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DIRECTORS, STATUTORY AUDITORS, CORPORATE OFFICERS, AND CHIEF TECHNOLOGISTS
(As of March 30, 2005)

◆ REPRESENTATIVE DIRECTOR AND 
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mitsuo Ohashi

◆ PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Kyohei Takahashi
Chairman, Responsible Care Committee

◆ REPRESENTATIVE DIRECTOR & SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
Yasumasa Sasaki
Executive Officer, Technology Headquarters; 
Special Advisor to HD Business 

◆ SENIOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
Tatsuo Sato
Executive Officer, Aluminum Sector

◆ MANAGING DIRECTORS
Tadahiro Hashimoto
Executive Officer, Electronics Sector

Hiroshi Ito
Director in charge of Audit Office; Executive Officer, 
Business Support Center

Norikuni Imoto
Executive Officer, Corporate Relations Center; Chairman, Security
Export Control Committee and Corporate Ethics Committee

Hiroshi Nishimoto
Executive Officer, Petrochemicals Sector

◆ DIRECTORS
Tetsuo Tamada
Executive Officer, Inorganic Materials Sector

Norio Masubuchi
Executive Officer, Chemicals Sector; 
General Manager, Planning Department, Chemicals Sector

Ichiro Nomura
Director in charge of Corporate Strategy Department; 
Chairman, IR Committee

Shinji Sakai
Deputy Executive Officer, Electronics Sector

Note: All directors, except the chairman of the board of directors,
concurrently serve as corporate officers corresponding to their
respective positions.

◆ STANDING STATUTORY AUDITORS
Naoaki Yokobori
Minoru Kiyono

◆ AUDITORS
Takashi Kobayashi
Shogo Itoda

STATUTORY AUDITORS

DIRECTORS
◆ SENIOR CORPORATE OFFICER

Koji Kudo
Oita Complex Representative; Plant Manager, Oita Plant

◆ CORPORATE OFFICERS

Toshio Ohi
Deputy Executive Officer, Technology Headquarters; 
General Manager, Production Technology Department, 
Technology Headquarters; 
Chairman, Safety Measures Committee

Kenji Katagiri
General Manager, Corporate Technical Department, 
Technology Headquarters

Kenji Tsukamoto
Deputy Executive Officer, Aluminum Sector

Masayoshi Okamoto
General Manager, Heat Exchanger Division, Aluminum Sector

Takumi Ui
General Manager, Shotic Division, Aluminum Sector

Kouichi Sekiya
General Manager, Gases & Chemicals Division, Chemicals Sector;
Chief Manager, Industrial Gases Department

Hisao Takamatsu
General Manager, Specialty Chemicals Division, 
Chemicals Sector

Takashi Miyazaki
General Manager, Olefins Division and Organic Chemicals Division,
Petrochemicals Sector

Takao Fujiwara
General Manager, Ceramics Division, Inorganic Materials Sector

Masayuki Miyauchi
General Manager, Carbons & Metallic Materials Division, 
Inorganic Materials Sector

Yoshikazu Watanabe
General Manager, Rolled Products Division, Aluminum Sector

Toshio Nishide
General Manager, Extrusions/Specialty Products Division, 
Aluminum Sector

◆ SENIOR CHIEF TECHNOLOGIST
Yorikatsu Hohokabe
General Manager, Intellectual Property Department, 
Technology Headquarters

◆ CHIEF TECHNOLOGIST
Shigeru Yanagimoto
General Manager, Aluminum Technology Center, Aluminum Sector

CHIEF TECHNOLOGISTS

CORPORATE OFFICERS
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CORPORATE DATA

Regular General Meeting
The regular general meeting of stockholders was held on
March 30, 2005.

Number of Shares Outstanding
1,142,832,934 at December 31, 2004

Number of Stockholders
89,549 at December 31, 2004

Classification of Stock
All stock issued by Showa Denko is common stock.

Stock Transfer Agent
Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.

2-1, Yaesu 1-chome, 
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-8670, 
Japan

Stockholders by Sector (At December 31, 2004)

Number of shares 
held (thousands) %

Financial firms 561,685 49.15%

Individuals 299,470 26.20

Foreign corporate entities, etc. 185,130 16.20

Japanese corporate entities 81,023 7.09

Securities firms 15,523 1.36

Governmental bodies 2 0.00

Total 1,142,833 100.00%

Head Office
Showa Denko K.K.

13-9, Shiba Daimon 1-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8518, 
Japan
Fax: 3-3436-2625

e-mail: sdk_prir@sdk.co.jp
URL: http://www.sdk.co.jp

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Showa Denko America, Inc.

Head Office
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Fl.,
New York, NY 10017,
U.S.A.
Phone: 212-370-0033
Fax: 212-370-4566

Santa Clara Office
2880 Lakeside Drive, Suite 253,
Santa Clara, CA 95054,
U.S.A.
Phone: 408-327-8878
Fax: 408-327-8870

Showa Denko Europe GmbH
Martin-Kollar-Str. 10,
D-81829 Munich,
Germany
Phone: 89-939-96234
Fax: 89-939-96250

Showa Denko Singapore (Pte.) Ltd.
4 Shenton Way, 
#16-01 SGX Centre 2,
Singapore 068807
Phone: 6223-1889
Fax: 6223-6007

Showa Denko (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
11F-A Zhong Cheng Bld., 
818 Dong Fang Rd., Pudong,
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China
Phone: 21-5820-6120
Fax: 21-5820-2034

COMMERCIAL SUBSIDIARIES ABROAD
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